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OHIO
UNIVERSITY

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The discussion and analysis of Ohio University’s financial statements provides an overview of the University’s
financial activities for the year ended June 30, 2002 and June 30, 2001. Management has prepared the financial
statements and the related footnote disclosures along with this discussion and analysis. Responsibility for the
completeness and fairness of this information rests with University management.

USING THIS REPORT

In June of 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) released Statement No. 34, Basic
Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments. This
Statement requires a comprehensive look at the entity as a whole. In November 1999, GASB issued Statement
No. 35, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for Public Colleges and
Universities, which applies those standards to that group. Public colleges and universities no longer have a
unique reporting format. The purpose of these statements is to enhance the understandability and usefulness of
the general purpose external financial reports issued by public colleges and universities. The goal is to respond to
the needs of the primary users of these statements, i.e., those to whom we are primarily accountable (the
citizenry), those who directly represent the citizens (legislative and oversight bodies), and those who lend or who
participate in the lending process (investors and creditors).

The major changes from the statements presented by the University in the past are as follows:

o Three basic financial statements: the Statement of Net Assets, the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Assets, and the Statement of Cash Flows.

¢ The Statement of Net Assets classifies assets and liabilities as current or noncurrent. Generally, current
liabilities are those that will be paid within one year of the date of the Statement. Current assets are those that
are available to satisfy current liabilities.

o The term “net assets” replaces “fund balance”. There are three classes allowed: Unrestricted, Restricted
(nonexpendable and expendable), and Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt.

o The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets differentiates between operating and
nonoperating revenue. Charges for goods and services are recorded as operating revenues. Essentially all
other types of revenue are nonoperating, or other revenue. Nonoperating revenues include State
appropriations, gifts and investment income. The net income or loss from operations is presented and will
typically result in a loss for State-supported public institutions since State appropriations are mandated as
nonoperating revenue and play such a significant role in the funding.

e Tuition and fee revenues, and the corresponding scholarship and fellowship expenses, are reported net of
scholarship discounts and allowances in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets.
Scholarship discounts and allowances are the difference between the stated charge for goods and services
provided by the institution and the amount that is paid by students and/or third parties making payments on
the student’s behalf.

o Expenditures for capital assets are replaced by the recognition of depreciation expense.



This annual financial report includes the report of the independent auditors, this management’s discussion and
analysis, the three basic financial statements referenced above and notes to the financial statements. Though
comparative data with the previous fiscal year is not required in the first year of implementation, we have gone
beyond the minimum requirements and have included audited FY 2001 data in order to provide a more
meaningful presentation.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS OF FY 2002

During the 2002 fiscal year, Ohio University continued to grow. The Enterprise Project, whose mission is to
replace the University’s legacy administrative systems with the financial and human resource systems from
Oracle Corporation, went live with the human resource management and payroll system July 1, 2001. The
financial modules will replace their legacy counterparts in the 2003 fiscal year. In addition, this Project is
working to span the University with an electronic document management and imaging system as well as
electronic, web-based time and attendance reporting.

Along with the issues of State support and endowment growth, quantitative and qualitative indicators of faculty
and student body strength are predictors of the future financial health and well being of the University. Here are
several measures of this strength:

Students

e 19,660 students enrolled at the Athens campus (20,265 including Continuing Education), 7,931 students
enrolled at regional campuses for a total enrollment of 28,196, Fall 2001. For the Fall of 2000 the
corresponding numbers were 19,327 (19,920 including Continuing Education), 8,195 students enrolled at
regional campuses for a total enrollment of 28,115.

e 12,433 new first-year students applied for undergraduate admission to the Athens Campus in Fall 2001, with
9,747 admitted and 3,778 students who enrolled at the University. Corresponding numbers for Fall 2000
were 12,295 applied, 9,447 admitted and 3,661 enrolled.

e 3,035 graduate students applied in Fall 2001, with 2,317 admitted and 952 students who enrolled. 3,763
graduate students applied in Fall 2000, with 2,366 admitted and 981 students who enrolled.

e The first-year student retention rate for the Athens campus in FY 2002 was 85%. It was the same for the
previous fiscal year.

¢ In Fall 2001, 70% of undergraduates enrolled at the Athens campus graduate within 6 years (the 2nd highest
graduation rate in the State of Ohio), with an additional 22% of students who transferred to another
institution. In Fall 2000, the corresponding numbers were 69% of undergraduates (which was the 2nd highest
graduation rate) with an additional 21% of students who transferred to another institution.

e There were 293 undergraduate majors from which to choose in Fall 2001 and in Fall 2000.

e In Fall 2001 and Fall 2000, the mean ACT score of first-year undergraduate students was 24, which was
higher than both the national and state averages; 18% of the first-year undergraduate students ranked in the
top 10% of their high school class.

Faculty & Staff

e In FY 2002, Ohio University had 1,038 full-time faculty and 704 part-time faculty. The corresponding FY
2001 numbers were 1,047 full-time faculty and 661 part-time faculty.

e The student to faculty ratio at the Athens campus in Fall 2001 and Fall 2000 was 20:1.



CURRENT YEAR RESULTS

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

One of the most important questions asked about a University’s finances is whether the University is better off as
a result of the year’s activities. The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Assets report information on the University as a whole and on its activities in a way that helps
answer this question. Qver time, increases or decreases in the University’s net assets are one indicator of whether
its financial health is improving or deteriorating. Numerous other nonfinancial factors, such as the trend and
quality of applicants, freshman class size and composition, student retention and graduation rates, strength of the
faculty, condition of the campus infrastructure and the safety of the campus, must be considered when assessing
the overall health of the University.

Included in the University’s financial statements is The Ohio University Osteopathic Medical Center, Inc. (MCI),
discretely presented as a component unit. While information related to MCI is incorporated in these statements,
the information included in this discussion and analysis centers around the primary institution. Readers of these
financial statements are also referred to financial statements separately issued for MCI for further information
related to that entity.

Points of interest relative to the Statement of Net Assets are as follows:
e Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents represents funds held by bond trustees.
¢ The decrease to Endowment Investments of 7.2% is reflective of market performance.

o Capital Assets are presented for the first time under our new reporting standards, net of their accumulated
depreciation of $319,363,171 for FY 2002, $311,837,765 for FY 2001.

¢ Refundable Advances for Federal Student Loans are new to the statement of net asset presentation. They
represent the Federal capital contribution (FCC) to Federal student loan programs, presented as a potential
long-term liability.

e  QOur overall net asset position increased by 7.1%. All of the growth was attributable to the net asset category
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt.

Endowment

The University’s endowment decreased by $8.6 million, from $45.5 million at June 30, 2001 to $36.9 million at
June 30, 2002. The endowment, which is heavily weighted (72%) in U.S. equities, earned a return on investments
of -14.5%, compared with a return of -13.5% for the Standard & Poor’s stock index.

Net Assets

The following chart graphically depicts the breakdown of Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets for Ohio University
for the years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001:

2002 2001

Assets: $
Capital assets, net 411,925,152 364,112,307
Other assets 199,123,491 222,137,464
$ 611,048,643 586,249,771

Liabilities:

Current liabilities $ 75,178,808 72,978,544
Non-current liabilities 135,966,142 139,826,356
211,144,950 212,804,900
Net assets $ 399,903,693 373,444,871




Fiscal Year 2002

Net Assets
33%

Liabilities
17%

Fiscal Year 2001

Net Assets
32%

Liabilities
18%

The Net Assets for fiscal years 2002 and 2001 are further displayed as follows:

2002 2001
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 285,269,795 231,797,967
Restricted nonexpendable 11,604,413 12,505,767
Restricted expendable 57,253,381 74,608,894
Unrestricted 45,776,104 54,532,243
Total $ 399,903,693 373,444,871
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Points of interest relative to the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets:
Operating Revenues

Operating revenues result from sales of goods and services and include tuition and fees, housing and the like. In
addition, certain Federal, State, Local and private grants are considered operating revenue if they are not for
capital purposes and are provided as a contract for services. Operating revenues increased due to an 8% increase
in student tuition and fees and a 6% increase in room and board fees.



Nonoperating Revenues

Nonoperating revenues are revenue sources that are primarily nonexchange in nature. They would consist mainly
of State appropriations and investment income (including realized and unrealized gains and losses), and grants
and contracts that do not require any services to be performed for the benefit of the grantor.

Nonoperating revenues were impacted by the following factors:

State Share of Instruction

Declining tax revenues forced the State of Ohio to reduce its budget in the fall of 2001 in order to meet its
fiduciary and legal obligations. One of the actions taken was to reduce the State Share of Instruction to public
universities. For Ohio University, this amounted to a reduction of $9.4 million from the amount expected to
be received and which had been budgeted for FY 2002. This reduction was a permanent decrease in the
absolute level of State support. In FY 2002 the reduction was absorbed by reduced expenditures and the use
of various University reserves. The ongoing reduction was managed in the budget planning for FY 2003
through a combination of expense reductions and a two-tier tuition strategy.

Investment Earnings

The University’s working capital of approximately $100 million is invested in money market, fixed income
and long-term equity strategies. In FY 2002 the investment performance was adversely impacted by defaults
in corporate bonds in the fixed income portfolio and declining equity performance in the long-term
investment strategy. On this total investment portfolio we experienced a realized loss of $1.6 million and an
unrealized loss of $1.9 million, all of which was absorbed in year-end operating results.

Other Revenues

Other revenues include items such as capital appropriations from the State or Federal government, capital
grants and contracts and additions to permanent endowment.

The following charts depict total revenue by source for the fiscal years 2002 and 2001, respectively:

Revenues by source 2002 2001
State appropriations $ 144,819,888 149,314,835
Tuition and fees, net 143,115,709 129,485,138
Grants and contracts 72,219,822 66,737,096
Sales and services 6,926,473 6,328,872
Auxiliary enterprises, net 46,812,756 44,211,681
Investment income, net (3,930,184) 2,646,853
Capital appropriations 32,658,816 27,756,928
Other 8,399,900 8,443,073

Total $ 451,023,180 434,924,476
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Operating Expenses

Operating expenses are all costs necessary to perform and conduct the programs and primary endeavors of
the University. Overall the University’s operating units came in under budget and increased carryforward
reserves by $4,036,000. Operating expenses were most impacted by the results of Ohio University's
employee health care program. Beginning July 1, 2001 the University changed employee health insurance
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carriers, from Unicare to Medical Mutual of Ohio, resulting in claims and administrative experience of
$1,936,663 less than budget. In addition, based on a third party actuarial calculation, the University's Run
Out Reserve decreased by $1,939,000 to $4,211,000, due to a reduction in the lag time to process claims by
Medical Mutual of Ohio.

Scholarships and fellowships have been reduced by the amount of scholarship awards internally credited to
tuition, fees, and room and board revenue. By the same token those revenues have been reduced. That
amount was $37,061,484 and $32,459,056 for FY 2002 and FY 2001, respectively.

Depreciation expense makes its debut on our statements for the first time, as required by GASB 35.

The following charts depict operating and nonoperating expenses by source:

Operating expenses by source 2002 2001
Instruction and departmental research $ 165,131,818 154,461,993
Separately budgeted research 27,255,898 22,976,629
Public service 14,879,215 14,644,381
Academic support 32,212,536 34,806,102
Student services 20,807,467 20,261,076
Institutional support 36,882,740 36,528,504
Operation and maintenance of plant 33,934,978 34,554,055
Student aid 5,706,074 5,243,479
Depreciation 21,979,684 20,892,020
Auxiliary enterprises 59,552,681 56,588,688
Interest on capital asset-related debt 5,453,686 4,176,204
Disposal and write-offs of plant facilities 767,581 373,017

Total $ 424,564,358 405,506,148

Operating Expenses 2002
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Operating Expenses 2001
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

Major capital additions completed during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002 and the resources that funded their
acquisition/construction included (in millions):

e Grover Center $24.3  State of Ohio Capital Appropriations
e Life Science Center 17.6 State of Ohio Capital Appropriations
¢ Pickerington Center 3.9 Internal Funds
¢ Peden Stadium 2.8 Sale of Bonds
¢ Athena Theater 2.4 Sale of Bonds
e Airport Terminal Facility 1.6 Sale of Bonds
e Bromley Hall 1.4 Sale of Bonds
e Shannon Hall (Belmont) 1.3 Sale of Bonds

Major capital additions completed in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001 and the resources that funded their
acquisition/construction included (in millions):

e Biochemistry Research Facility $6.2 Sale of Bonds
e Bromley Hall 5.2 Sale of Bonds
¢ Child Care Center 3.0 Sale of Bonds
e Track & Field Development 3.0 Sale of Bonds
¢ Bird Arena 1.2 Sale of Bonds
¢ Bennett Hall (Chillicothe) 1.2 Sale of Bonds
¢ Strength and Conditioning Center 1.1  Private Gifts



Cumulative costs associated with capital projects continuing after the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002 totaled
approximately $62.2 million. These projects include (in millions):

¢ District Water Cooling $11.1
e Bentley Hall 9.4
e Enterprise Project 8.5
e Southern Campus Tech Building 5.6
e Performance Contracting 5.1
e Human Resources Training Center 4.1
¢ Johnson Hall 34
e Ridges Building #21 23
e Ridges Building #22 2.1
¢ Lecture Hall/Smart Classroom 1.1
e Airport Runway Expansion 1.0

Cumulative costs associated with capital projects continuing after the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001 totaled
approximately $66.7 million. These projects include (in millions):

¢ Grover Center $233
e Life Science Center 7.3
e District Water Cooling 6.7
e Enterprise Project 5.8
o Bentley Hall 2.7
e Southern Campus Tech Building 2.6
e Performance Contracting 2.3
¢ Johnson Hall 2.3
e Peden Stadium 2.2
e Ridges Building #22 1.3
e Human Resources Training Center 1.3
e Ridges Building #21 1.1
Debt

At year-end, the University had some $125.9 million in debt obligations outstanding versus $130.8 million the
previous year, a decrease of 3.7%. The University’s revenue bond rating of A+ has not changed from the prior
year.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, the University entered into a fixed rate swap with J.P. Morgan Chase
Bank for $31 million over twenty-five years. The notional amount is hedged against the outstanding par value of
the variable rate based Series 2001 bonds. In effect, the University will now pay a fixed rate of 4.039%.
Historically, the 4.039% is a very low rate of interest to be paid by the University on its outstanding debt, but in
the current rate environment is higher than that for the underlying variable rate debt.
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KPME/

1600 PNC Center
201 East Fifth St.
Cincinnati, OH 45202

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Trustees of
Ohio University
and
The Honorable James M. Petro,
Auditor of State:

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements as listed in the accompanying table of
contents of Ohio University (the University), a component unit of the State of Ohio, and its discretely
presented component unit, as of and for the years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the University's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the University and of its discretely presented component unit as of June 30,
2002 and 2001, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows for the years then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 11,
2002 on our consideration of the University’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in
conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

As described in note 1 to the financial statements, as of July 1, 2000, the University adopted the provisions
of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements —
and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments, GASB Statement No. 35,
Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for Public Colleges and
Universities — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 34, GASB Statement No. 37, Basic Financial
Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments: Omnibus —
an amendment of GASB Statements No. 21 and No. 34, and GASB Statement No. 38, Certain Financial
Statement Note Disclosures.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis is not a required part of the basic financial statements but is
supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

KP s LoP

October 11, 2002
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Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accrued interest receivable
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and deferred charges
Notes receivable, net

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Investment in unconsolidated subsidiary
Endowment investments
Notes receivable, net
Capital assets, net

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

Liabilities & Net Assets
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Refunds and other liabilities
Capital lease obligations
Bonds and notes payable

Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Capital lease obligations

Compensated absences

Bonds and notes payable

Refundable advances for federal student loans

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted:
Nonexpendable:
Instructional department uses
Loans
Research
Scholarships and fellowships
Expendable:
Capital projects
Debt service
Instructional department uses
Loans
Public service
Research
Scholarships and fellowships
Unrestricted

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

OHIO UNIVERSITY
Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2002
Primary

Institution MCI Total
$ 20,304,599 87,491 20,392,090
91,846,138 — 91,846,138
894,660 3,801 898,461
29,788,598 1,519,213 31,307,811
1,600,907 — 1,600,907
8,807,680 150,668 8,958,348
1,776,643 — 1,776,643
155,019,225 1,761,173 156,780,398
23,586,706 — 23,586,706
— 3,323 3,323
11,604,413 — 11,604,413
8,913,147 — 8,913,147
411,925,152 2,500 411,927,652
456,029,418 5,823 456,035,241
$ 611,048,643 1,766,996 612,815,639
$ 39,608,194 1,216,284 40,824,478
16,666,571 — 16,666,571
1,961,686 — 1,961,686
594,757 3,467 598,224
16,347,600 — 16,347,600
75,178,808 1,219,751 76,398,559
6,392,835 — 6,392,835
198,899 — 198,899
13,135,006 — 13,135,006
109,532,400 — 109,532,400
6,707,002 — 6,707,002
135,966,142 — 135,966,142
211,144,950 1,219,751 212,364,701
285,269,795 — 285,269,795
3,141,184 — 3,141,184
177,511 — 177,511
1,223,368 — 1,223,368
7,062,350 — 7,062,350
23,949,601 — 23,949,601
355,030 — 355,030
9,913,633 — 9,913,633
6,587,061 — 6,587,061
2,895,408 — 2,895,408
6,531,957 — 6,531,957
7,020,691 — 7,020,691
45,776,104 547,245 46,323,349
399,903,693 547,245 400,450,938
$ 611,048,643 1,766,996 612,815,639
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Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accrued interest receivable
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and deferred charges
Notes receivable, net

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Investment in unconsolidated subsidiary
Endowment investments
Notes receivable, net
Capital assets, net

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

Liabilities & Net Assets
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Refunds and other liabilities
Capital lease obligations
Bonds and notes payable

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Capital lease obligations
Compensated absences
Bonds and notes payable
Refundable advances for federal student loans

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted:
Nonexpendable:
Instructional department uses
Loans
Research
Scholarships and fellowships
Expendable:
Capital projects
Debt service
Instructional department uses
Loans
Public service
Research
Scholarships and fellowships
Unrestricted

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

OHIO UNIVERSITY
Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2001
Primary

Institution MCI Total
$ 17,985,426 57,547 18,042,973
107,432,962 — 107,432,962
1,023,792 2,810 1,026,602
25,216,954 1,332,836 26,549,790
1,796,315 — 1,796,315
10,029,016 194,968 10,223,984
1,663,409 — 1,663,409
165,147,874 1,588,161 166,736,035
36,151,770 — 36,151,770
— 62,705 62,705
12,498,767 — 12,498,767
8,339,053 — 8,339,053
364,112,307 17,500 364,129,807
421,101,897 80,205 421,182,102
$ 586,249,771 1,668,366 587,918,137
$ 42,098,421 1,152,249 43,250,670
14,903,869 — 14,903,869
1,881,854 — 1,881,854
579,400 19,626 599,026
13,515,000 — 13,515,000
72,978,544 1,171,875 74,150,419
3,155,016 — 3,155,016
624,939 3,467 628,406
12,700,879 — 12,700,879
117,330,000 — 117,330,000
6,015,522 — 6,015,522
139,826,356 3,467 139,829,823
212,804,900 1,175,342 213,980,242
231,797,967 — 231,797,967
3,141,184 — 3,141,184
177,511 — 177,511
1,219,368 — 1,219,368
7,967,704 — 7,967,704
36,911,929 — 36,911,929
524,141 — 524,141
13,547,128 — 13,547,128
6,497,549 — 6,497,549
2,721,252 — 2,721,252
6,678,067 — 6,678,067
7,728,828 — 7,728,828
54,532,243 493,024 55,025,267
373,444,871 493,024 373,937,895
$ 586,249,771 1,668,366 587,918,137
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OHIO UNIVERSITY
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets
For the Year Ended June 30, 2002

Primary
Institution MCI Total
Revenues:
Operating revenues:
Student tuition and fees, net of scholarship allowances $ 143,115,709 — 143,115,709
Federal grants and contracts 17,539,638 — 17,539,638
State grants and contracts 5,046,825 — 5,046,825
Local grants and contracts 664,578 — 664,578
Private grants and contracts 5,756,293 — 5,756,293
Sales and services 6,926,473 — 6,926,473
Auxiliary enterprises, net of scholarship allowances 46,812,756 — 46,812,756
Patient and professional services — 10,177,138 10,177,138
Other sources 8,388,916 45,559 8,434,475
Total operating revenues 234,251,188 10,222,697 244,473,885
Expenses:
Operating expenses:
Educational and general
Instruction and departmental research 165,131,818 — 165,131,818
Separately budgeted research 27,255,898 — 27,255,898
Public service 14,879,215 — 14,879,215
Academic support 32,212,536 — 32,212,536
Student services 20,807,467 — 20,807,467
Institutional support 36,882,740 — 36,882,740
Operation and maintenance of plant 33,934,978 — 33,934,978
Student aid 5,706,074 — 5,706,074
Depreciation 21,979,684 15,000 21,994,684
Auxiliary enterprises 59,552,681 — 59,552,681
Operating expenses - MCI — 10,157,944 10,157,944
Total operating expenses 418,343,091 10,172,944 428,516,035
Operating income (loss) (184,091,903) 49,753 (184,042,150)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
State appropriations 144,819,888 — 144,819,888
Federal grants and contracts 22,436,903 — 22,436,903
State grants and contracts 6,030,584 — 6,030,584
Local grants and contracts 117,262 — 117,262
Private gifts, grants and contracts 8,198,045 — 8,198,045
Investment income, net of investment expense (3,930,184) 12,368 (3,917,816)
Income taxes — (7,900) (7,900)
Interest on capital asset - related debt (5,453,686) — (5,453,686)
Disposal and write-offs of plant facilities (767,581) — (767,581)
Net nonoperating revenues 171,451,231 4,468 171,455,699
Income (loss) before other revenues, expenses, gains or losses (12,640,672) 54,221 (12,586,451)
Capital appropriations 32,658,816 — 32,658,816
Capital grants and contracts 6,429,694 — 6,429,694
Additions to permanent endowments 10,984 — 10,984
Total other revenues 39,099,494 — 39,099,494
Increase in net assets 26,458,822 54,221 26,513,043
Net assets:
Net assets, beginning of year 373,444,871 493,024 373,937,895
Net assets, end of year $ 399,903,693 547,245 400,450,938

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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OHIO UNIVERSITY

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets

For the Year Ended June 30, 2001

Revenues:
Operating revenues:
Student tuition and fees, net of scholarship allowances
Federal grants and contracts
State grants and contracts
Local grants and contracts
Private grants and contracts
Sales and services
Auxiliary enterprises, net of scholarship allowances
Patient and professional services
Other sources

Total operating revenues

Expenses:

Operating expenses
Educational and general
Instruction and departmental research
Separately budgeted research
Public service
Academic support
Student services
Institutional support
Operation and maintenance of plant
Student aid
Depreciation
Auxiliary enterprises

Operating expenses - MCl

Total operating expenses
Operating loss

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
State appropriations
Federal grants and contracts
State grants and contracts
Local grants and contracts
Private gifts, grants and contracts
Tnvestment income, net of investment expense
Interest on capital asset - related debt
Disposal and write-offs of plant facilities

Net nonoperating revenues
Loss before other revenues, expenses, gains or losses

Capital appropriations
Capital grants and contracts
Additions to permanent endowments

Total other revenues
Increase (decrease) in net assets

Net assets:
Net assets, beginning of yeat
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle
Adjusted net assets, beginning of year
Net assets, end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Primary
Institution MCI Total
$ 129,485,138 — 129,485,138
17,686,355 — 17,686,355
6,164,225 — 6,164,225
345,656 — 345,656
5,624,024 — 5,624,024
6,328,872 — 6,328,872
44,211,681 — 44,211,681
— 9,581,317 9,581,317
8,433,621 76,689 8,510,310
218,279,572 9,658,006 227,937,578
154,461,993 — 154,461,993
22,976,629 — 22,976,629
14,644,381 — 14,644,381
34,806,102 — 34,806,102
20,261,076 — 20,261,076
36,528,504 — 36,528,504
34,554,055 — 34,554,055
5,243,479 — 5,243,479
20,892,020 15,000 20,907,020
56,588,688 — 56,588,688
— 10,004,854 10,004,854
400,956,927 10,019,854 410,976,781
(182,677,355) (361,848) (183,039,203)
149,314,835 — 149,314,835
19,207,762 — 19,207,762
5,541,968 — 5,541,968
166,942 — 166,942
7,421,960 — 7,421,960
2,646,853 10,608 2,657,461
(4,176,204) — (4,176,204)
(373,017) — (373,017)
179,751,099 10,608 179,761,707
(2,926,256) (351,240) (3,277,496)
27,756,928 — 27,756,928
4,578,204 — 4,578,204
9,452 — 9,452
32,344,584 — 32,344,584
29,418,328 (351,240) 29,067,088
650,438,983 844,264 651,283,247
(306,412,440) — (306,412,440)
344,026,543 844,264 344,870,807
$ 373,444,871 493,024 373,937,895
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OHIO UNIVERSITY

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30, 2002

Cash flows from operating activities:
Tuition and fees
Grants and contracts
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Payments for benefits
Payments for scholarships and fellowships
Loans issued to students
Collection of loans to students
Auxiliary enterprise sales
Sales and services of educational departments
Patient and other professional services
Other receipts

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
State appropriations
Gifts and grants for other than capital purposes
William D. Ford direct lending receipts
William D. Ford direct lending disbursements
PLUS loan receipts
PLUS loan disbursements
Student organization agency transactions

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital financing activities:
Proceeds from capital debt
Capital appropriations
Capital grants and gifts received
Purchases of capital assets
Principal paid on capital debt and leases
Interest paid on capital debt and leases

Net cash used in capital financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments
Interest on investments
Purchase of investments

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash used in operating activities:

Operating income (1oss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash used in operating activities

Depreciation expense
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net
Interest receivable
Notes receivable
Deferred revenue
Prepaid expense and deferred charges
Inventories
Accounts payable
Refunds and other liabilities

Net cash used in operating activities

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Primary
Institution MCI Total
164,960,361 — 164,960,361
29,007,334 — 29,007,334
(70,485,060) (3.603,760) (74,088,820)
(228,106,155) (5.,451,492) (233,557,647)
(58,296,350) (1,006,031) (59,302,381)
(58,106,721) — (58,106,721)
(2,688,078) — (2,688,078)
2,063,755 — 2,063,755
56,720,965 — 56,720,965
6,833,075 — 6,833,075
— 9,986,666 9,986,666
846,474 52,437 898,911
(157,250,400) (22,180) (157,272,580)
144,642,412 — 144,642,412
33,538,521 — 33,538,521
58,427,798 — 58,427,798
(58,427,798) — (58,427,798)
23,611,286 — 23,611,286
(23,611,286) — (23,611,286)
(710,981) — (710,981)
177,469,952 — 177,469,952
8,550,000 — 8,550,000
31,817,190 — 31,817,190
6,429,694 — 6,429,694
(51,408.,564) — (51,408,564)
(14,149,850) (19,626) (14,169,476)
(5,453,687) — (5,453,687)
(24,215.217) (19,626) (24,234,843)
315,590,003 72,000 315,662,003
7,022,081 — 7,022,081
(328,862,310) (250) (328,862,560)
(6,250,226) 71,750 (6,178,476)
(10,245.,891) 29,944 (10,215,947)
54,137,196 57,547 54,194,743
43,891,305 87,491 43,978,796
(184,091,903) 49,753 (184,042,150)
21,979,683 15,000 21,994,683
(7,229,885) (186,377) (7,416,262)
— (991) 991)
(687,328) — (687,328)
1,762,702 — 1,762,702
1,221,336 44,300 1,265,636
195,408 — 195,408
9,585,217 56,135 9,641,352
14,370 — 14,370
(157,250,400) (22,180) (157,272,580)




OHIO UNIVERSITY
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended June 30, 2001

Primary
Institution MCI Total
Cash flows from operating activities:
Tuition and fees $ 149,977,618 — 149,977,618
Grants and contracts 29,820,260 — 29,820,260
Payments to suppliers (68,846,661) (3,777,814) (72,624,475)
Payments to employees (218,160,999) (5,320,240) (223,481,239)
Payments for benefits (58,469,844) (1,155,175) (59,625,019)
Payments for scholarships and fellowships (51,048,979) — (51,048,979)
Loans issued to students (2,956,479) — (2,956,479)
Collection of loans to students 1,724,344 — 1,724,344
Auxiliary enterprise sales 50,853,504 — 50,853,504
Sales and services of educational departments 7,109,161 — 7,109,161
Patient and other professional services — 10,164,164 10,164,164
Other receipts 163,135 87,297 250,432
Net cash used in operating activities (159,834,940) (1,768) (159,836,708)
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
State appropriations 149,314,835 — 149,314,835
Gifts and grants for other than capital purposes 29,519,019 — 29,519,019
William D. Ford direct lending receipts 53,780,922 — 53,780,922
William D. Ford direct lending disbursements (53,780,922) — (53,780,922)
PLUS loan receipts 19,984,161 — 19,984,161
PLUS loan disbursements (19,984,161) — (19,984,161)
Student organization agency transactions 20,959 — 20,959
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 178,854,813 — 178,854,813
Cash flows from capital financing activities:
Proceeds from capital debt 56,675,000 — 56,675,000
Capital appropriations 27,469,550 — 27,469,550
Capital grants and gifts received 4,578,203 — 4,578,203
Purchases of capital assets (89,450,933) — (89,450,933)
Principal paid on capital debt and leases (10,295,556) (17,828) (10,313,384)
Interest paid on capital debt and leases (4,176,202) — (4,176,202)
Net cash used in capital financing activities (15,199,938) (17,828) (15,217,766)
Cash flows from investing activities: —
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 395,703,302 — 395,703,302
Interest on investments 9,132,637 — 9,132,637
Purchase of investments (400,369,511) — (400,369,511)
Net cash provided by investing activities 4,466,428 — 4,466,428
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 8,286,363 (19,596) 8,266,767
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 45,850,833 77,143 45,927,976
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 54,137,196 57,547 54,194,743
Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Operating loss $  (182,677,355) (361,848) (183,039,203)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation expense 20,892,020 15,000 20,907,020
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net (5,728,502) 532,985 (5,195,517)
Interest receivable — (2,810) 2,810)
Notes receivable (506,409) — (506,409)
Deferred revenue 913,392 — 913,392
Prepaid expense and deferred charges (511,507) (44,011) (555,518)
Inventories (42,184) — (42,184)
Accounts payable 7,057,998 (141,084) 6,916,914
Refunds and other liabilities 767,607 — 767,607
Net cash used in operating activities $  (159,834,940) (1,768) (159,836,708)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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OHIO UNIVERSITY
(a component unit of the State of Ohio)

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2002 and 2001

Summary of Significant Accounting Principles

(@)

(b)

Organization

Ohio University (University) is a public institution established by the State of Ohio in 1804 under
Chapter 3337 of the Ohio Revised Code (ORC). As such it is a component unit of the State of Ohio.
The University is the oldest of the 13 state-assisted universities in Ohio. It is defined by statute to be
a body politic and corporate and an instrumentality of the State. The University is governed by a 9
member Board of Trustees that is granted authority under Ohio law to do all things necessary for the
proper maintenance and continual successful operation of the University. The Governor, with the
advice and consent of the State Senate, appoints Trustees for staggered 9-year nonrenewable terms.
In addition, 2 non-voting student members are appointed to the Board of Trustees for staggered 2-
year terms. The accompanying financial statements comply with the provisions of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, “The Financial Reporting Entity,” in that
the financial statements include all the organizations, activities, functions and component units for
which the University is financially accountable. Financial accountability is defined as the
appointment of a voting majority of the component unit’s board and either (1) the University’s
ability to impose its will over the component unit or (2) the possibility that the component unit will
provide a financial benefit to or impose a financial burden on the University.

The Ohio University Osteopathic Medical Center, Inc. (MCI) is included in the University’s
financial statements as a discretely presented component unit. MCI is a separate legal entity from the
University, and certain members of MCI’s Board of Directors are employees of the University.

The Ohio University Foundation (Foundation) is a legally separate nonprofit organization. It is
exempt from federal income tax and was formed for the purpose of promoting educational and
research activities for the benefit of the University. The Foundation maintains a self-appointing
Board of Trustees. The Foundation’s financial activity is not included in the University’s financial
statements. Amounts received by the University from the Foundation are included in private gifts,
grants and contracts in the accompanying financial statements. The capital equipment utilized by the
Foundation is included in the University’s financial statements.

MCI

The accompanying financial statements present MCI as a discretely presented component unit in the
current year to comply with GASB Statement No. 14. MCI reports a fiscal year end of January 31,
on a cash basis, which is converted to the accrual basis for presentation herein.

MCI is a professional association formed under Chapter 1785 of the ORC for the purpose of
organizing licensed physicians and surgeons, who are faculty members of the Ohio University
College of Osteopathic Medicine (College), into a multi-specialty faculty group practice. The sole
purpose for the formation of this professional association is to render medical care, consultation,
diagnosis and treatment through physicians and surgeons licensed to practice medicine in the State of
Ohio.

For a significant portion of MCI’s operations, MCI utilizes the College’s services, tangible personal
and real property, personnel, library, research facilities and records and the goodwill attendant to
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OHIO UNIVERSITY
(a component unit of the State of Ohio)

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2002 and 2001

affiliation with the College. In accordance with the Clinical Practice Agreement, MCI has agreed to
pay the University (designated for the College) for these benefits. The payment is to be made
annually, based upon the formula specified in the Clinical Practice Agreement. For the years ended
January 31, 2002 and 2001, MCI paid the University $3,100,000 and $3,135,527, respectively. MCI
reports to the Internal Revenue Service on the modified cash basis of accounting. A separate report
presented on the modified cash basis of accounting is available by contacting MCI at Ohio
University Osteopathic Medical Center, Inc., 002 Grosvenor West, Athens, Ohio 45701 or (740)
593-1355.

Financial Statement Presentation

In June 1999, the GASB issued Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements and Management's
Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments. In November 1999, GASB issued
Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis for
Public Colleges and Universities, as amended by GASB Statement No. 37. In June 2001, GASB
issued Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures. The implementation of these
Standards was applied on a retroactive basis, and resulted in a decrease of $306,412,440 to the net
asset balance as of July 1, 2000. The University is implementing these Statements as of and for the
years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001. The financial statement presentation required by GASB No. 34
and 35 provides a comprehensive, entity-wide perspective of the University’s assets, liabilities, net
assets, revenues, expenses and changes in net assets and cash flows. It replaces fund-groups with net
asset groups, and requires the direct method of cash flow presentation. The most significant change
required by GASB 34 is the adoption of depreciation on capital assets. The financial statements for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001, have also been restated for comparative purposes.

Basis of Accounting

The University is a special-purpose government engaged only in business type activities.
Accordingly, the financial statements are presented using an economic resources measurement focus
and are presented on the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis, revenues are
recognized when earned, and expenses are recorded as incurred. All significant interfund
transactions have been eliminated. The financial statements of MCI as contained herein are presented
under the accrual basis of accounting,

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 20, the University is required to follow all applicable
GASB pronouncements. In addition, the University should apply all applicable Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board (APB)
Opinions and Accounting Research Bulletins of the Committee on Accounting Procedures issued on
or before November 30, 1989 unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements. The University has elected not to apply FASB pronouncements issued after
November 30, 1989.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America (GAAP) may require management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain amounts reported in the financial statements. The estimates and
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Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2002 and 2001

assumptions are based on currently available information and actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Investments

All investments are stated at fair value in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools. Investments in
publicly traded securities are stated at fair value as established by major securities markets.
Nonpublicly traded investments are valued based on independent appraisals and estimates
considering market prices of similar investments. Changes in unrealized gain (loss) on the carrying
value of investments are reported as a component of investment income in the Statements of
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets. As of June 30, 2002 and 2001, investment expenses
were $199,295 and $184,403, respectively.

Current Investments

Investments classified as current assets in the Statements of Net Assets include assets that can be
withdrawn on demand.

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Investments that are externally restricted for capital expenditures subject to bond and note
agreements, are classified as noncurrent assets in the Statements of Net Assets.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consists of amounts due for tuition and fees, and auxiliary enterprise services.
Accounts receivable also include amounts due from the Federal government, State and local
governments, or private sources, as reimbursement of certain expenditures made in accordance with
the University’s grants and contracts. Uncollectible amounts have been reserved.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at lower of weighted-average cost or net realizable value.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are presented in the financial statements of the University. Effective July 1, 2000 with
the advent of GASB 35, most of these items are also required to be depreciated over their estimated
useful lives. If purchased or constructed, they are recorded at cost or estimated historical cost in the
first year of implementation. If donated, they are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of
gift. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method and for library books the composite
method is also applied.
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June 30, 2002 and 2001

Following are the capitalization levels and estimated useful lives of major asset classes:

Asset class Capitalize at Estimated useful life
Buildings and building improvements  Any amount 10-14 years
Equipment $2,500 or greater 5-25 years
Improvements other than buildings Greater than $100,000 -FY02 10-50 years
Greater than $25,000 - FY01
Library books Any amount 10 years
Vehicles $2,500 or greater 5-10 years

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the capital asset or
materially extend its life are not capitalized. Interest incurred during the construction of capital assets
is included in the cost of the asset when capitalized. Land, land improvements and collections of
works of art and historical treasures are not depreciated.

Effective July 1, 2001, the University changed its capitalization policy for improvements other than
buildings from a minimum capitalization amount of greater than $25,000 to a minimum amount of
greater than $100,000. This change was implemented prospectively.

MCI has capital lease equipment stated at the lesser of the present value of future minimum lease
payments or at fair market value. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the lesser of
the life of the lease or the useful life of the equipment. The estimated useful life of equipment is five
years.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue includes amounts received for tuition and fees and cetrtain auxiliary activities prior
to the end of the fiscal year, related to the subsequent accounting period. The effect of not allocating
the summer term between fiscal years does not have a significant impact on the financial statement
presentation.

Compensated Absences

University employees earn vacation and sick leave benefits based, in part, on length of service. Upon
separation from service, employees are paid their accumulated vacation and sick pay based upon the
nature of separation (termination, retirement or death). Certain limitations are placed on the hours of
vacation and sick leave that employees may accumulate and carry over for payment at termination,
retirement or death. Unused hours exceeding their limitations are forfeited. The liability incurred is
recorded at year end as a long-term liability in the Statements of Net Assets, and as a component of
operating expense in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets.

Net Assets

The University’s net assets are categorized as described below:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt: This represents the University’s investment in capital
assets, net of debt obligations related to those capital assets.
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June 30, 2002 and 2001

Restricted net assets-nonexpendable: Restricted nonexpendable net assets represent permanent
endowments restricted or unrestricted as to income.

Restricted net assets-expendable: Restricted expendable net assets represent assets that are restricted
by a third party either legally or contractually.

Unrestricted net assets: Unrestricted net assets are resources derived primarily from student tuition,
fees, state appropriations, and auxiliary enterprises. These net assets are used for educational and
general obligations of the University. They may be used at the discretion of the Board of Trustees for
any purpose.

When an expense is incurred that can be paid using either restricted or unrestricted resources, the
University’s policy is to apply the expense at the discretion of University management.

Income Taxes

The University is an organization described in Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986
(the Code) and has further been classified as an organization that is not a private foundation in
accordance with Sections 509(a)(1) and 170(b)(1)(A)(ii) of the Code. However, certain revenues are
considered unrelated business income and are taxable under Internal Revenue Code Sections 511
through 513. For MCI, there are no significant differences in revenues and expenses for financial and
tax reporting purposes.

Classification of Revenues

Revenues are classified as either operating or nonoperating according to the following;:

Operating revenues. Operating revenues include revenues from activities that have characteristics
similar to exchange transactions. These include student tuition and fees, net of scholarship discounts
and allowances, sales and services of auxiliary enterprises, and certain Federal, State and local grants
and contracts.

Nonoperating revenues: Nonoperating revenues include revenues from activities that have the
characteristics of nonexchange transactions, such as State appropriations, and certain Federal, State
and local grants and contracts. Nonoperating revenues also include investment income,

Scholarship Discounts and Allowances

Student tuition and fee revenues, and certain other revenues from students, are net of scholarship
discounts and allowances in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets.
Scholarship discounts and allowances are the difference between the charge for tuition and fees, and
the amount paid by students or by third parties making the payments on the students’ behalf. As of
June 30, 2002 and June 30, 2001, scholarship discounts and allowances were $37,061,484 and
$32,459,056, respectively.
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June 30, 2002 and 2001

Auxiliary Enterprises

Auxiliary revenues are derived primarily from revenues generated from residence halls, dining
services, intercollegiate athletics, telephone operations, and various other activities.

Eliminations

The University eliminates interfund assets and liabilities, and revenues and expenses related to
internal activities.

Change in Accounting Principle

As a result of the adoption of GASB 34 and 35, as of June 30, 2002, the University was required to
record depreciation expense for capital assets of $21,979,684, and increases to noncurrent liabilities
for the Federal capital contribution (FCC) related to student loans (Perkins and nursing) and for the
University’s share of the State of Ohio workers’ compensation liability in the amount of $691,480
and $3,119,590, respectively. For comparative purposes, for the year ended June 30, 2001, the
University recorded depreciation expense of $20,892,020, an increase to non-current liabilities for
FCC related to student loans (Perkins and nursing) of $178,426, and workers’ compensation expense
of ($3,015,357). The cumulative effect of the change in accounting principle to the net asset balance
as of July 1, 2000 is a decrease of $306,412,440.

Financial Statement Totals

Total columns are included on the accompanying financial statements for informational purposes
only.

Deposits with Financial Institutions, Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments

The University makes investments in accordance with the Board of Trustees' policy that conforms to the
authority granted by the Ohio Revised Code. The purchase of specific investment instruments is at the
discretion of the University Treasurer within these policy guidelines.

(@)

Deposits

At June 30, 2002, the carrying amount of the University's deposits, excluding cash on hand of
$97,972 was $2,852,112 and the bank balance was $5,595,615. At June 30, 2001, the amount of the
University’s deposits, excluding cash on hand of $81,546 was $2,569,496 and the bank balance was
$7,760,958. Of the bank balance:

1) $847,110 and $575,698 was covered by federal depository insurance or by collateral held by a
qualified third party trustee in the name of the University as of June 30, 2002 and 2001,
respectively.

2) $4,748,505 and $7,185,260 was covered by collateral held by third party trustees pursuant to
Section 135.181 of the Ohio Revised Code in collateral pools securing all public funds on
deposit with specific depository institutions, as of June 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

The University’s cash and cash equivalents consisted of cash on hand and highly-liquid investments
with maturities of three months or less. As of June 30, 2002 and 2001, cash and cash equivalents for
the University were $20,304,599 and $17,985,426, respectively. In addition, recorded as restricted
cash and cash equivalents were bond proceeds held for distribution by bond trustees. Those amounts
were $23,586,706 and $36,151,770 at June 30, 2002 and June 30, 2001, respectively.

STAR Ohio is an investment pool managed by the State Treasurer’s Office that allows governments
within the State to pool their funds for investment purposes. STAR Ohio is not registered with the
Securities Exchange Commission as an investment company, but does operate in a manner consistent
with Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940. Investments in STAR Ohio are valued at
STAR Ohio’s share price, which is the price the investment could be sold for on June 30, 2002. At
June 30, 2002 and 2001, investments held in STAR Ohio were $5,532,753 and $14,448,517,
respectively. These are classified as cash equivalents on the Statements of Net Assets.

Investments in STAR Ohio are backed by the securities purchased by STAR Ohio. Historically, over
90% of the investments purchased by STAR Ohio are U.S. government obligations and all securities
purchased are held in a third party custodial arrangement on behalf of STAR Ohio. Investments in
cash and cash equivalents other than STAR Ohio and deposits are uninsured and unregistered.

MCTI’s cash and cash equivalents consisted of cash on hand and highly-liquid investments with
maturities of three months or less. As of January 31, 2002 and 2001, cash and cash equivalents for
MCI were $87,491 and $57,547, respectively.

Investments

The University's investments are categorized below to give an indication of the level of custodial
credit risk assumed by the entity at year-end. Category 1 includes investments that are insured or
registered or securities held by the University or its agent in the University’s name. Category 2
includes investments that are uninsured and unregistered with securities held by the counterparty or
its trust department in the University’s name. Category 3 includes investments that are uninsured and
unregistered with securities held by the counterparty or its trust department but not in the
University's name. All long-term investments except for certain fixed income holdings reported in
Category 2 are deposited in mutual funds with various managers. The investments are registered in
each manager’s name and the University's ownership is recorded in the managers’ internal records.
The investments in mutual funds and STAR Ohio are not required to be categorized due to their
nature.
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2002 2001
Fair value Fair value
Category 2:
U.S. Treasury obligations $ 4,795,911 3,197,155
U.S. Agency obligations 17,109,089 11,218,087
U.S. Corporate obligations 35,491,932 51,939,954
Category 3:
Money market funds 647,472 511,758
Mutual funds 45,406,147 53,064,775
Total $ 103,450,551 119,931,729

The fair value of investments is based on market values provided by a third party.

The University’s investment strategy incorporates certain financial instruments that involve, to
varying degrees, elements of market risk and credit risk in excess of amounts recorded in the
financial statements. Market risk is the potential for changes in the value of financial instruments due
to market changes, including interest and foreign exchange rate movements and rate fluctuations
embodied in forward, futures, commodity or security prices. Market risk is directly impacted by the
volatility and liquidity of the markets in which the related underlying assets are traded. Credit risk is
the possibility that a loss may occur due to the failure of the counterparty to perform according to the
terms of the contract. The University’s risk of loss in the event of a counterparty default is typically
limited to the amounts recognized in the Statement of Net Assets and is not represented by the
contract or notional amounts of the instruments.

(3) Accounts Receivable

The composition of accounts receivable at June 30, 2002 and 2001, is summarized as follows:

2002 2001
Student receivables for fees, room and board $ 7,272,865 5,024,358
Research and other sponsored programs 11,650,238 9,815,414
Other 13,594,329 12,436,247
32,517,432 27,276,019
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (2,728,834) (2,059,065)
Net accounts receivable $ 29,788,598 25,216,954

As of June 30, 2002, MCI accounts receivable consisted of patient services revenue in the amount of
$1,323,949, other professional services revenue in the amount of $182,481, and employee advances in the
amount of $12,783. As of June 30, 2001, patient services revenue receivable was $1,229,630, other
professional services revenue receivable was $99,954, and employee advances receivable was $3,252.
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Notes Receivable

Notes receivable at June 30, 2002 and 2001, included allowances for uncollectible amounts of $946,590
and $962,318, respectively. Principal repayment and interest terms vary. Federal loan programs are funded

primarily through Federal contributions under Perkins and various nursing programs.

The University distributed $82,039,084 and $73,765,083 for student loans through the U.S. Department of
Education Federal Direct Lending program during the years ended June 30, 2002, and 2001, respectively.
These distributions and the related funding sources are included as cash disbursements and cash receipts in

the accompanying statements of cash flows.

Capital Assets

The following tables present the changes in the various fixed asset class categories:

Retirements/
transfers from
Balance construction in Balance
July 1, 2001 Additions progress June 30, 2002
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 13,948,184 2,301,340 — 16,249,524
Land improvements 3,026,340 — — 3,026,340
Construction in progress 66,723,842 35,338,465 (39,851,950) 62,210,357
Collections of works of arts and
historical treasures 6,125,757 — — 6,125,757
Total capital assets not being
depreciated 89,824,123 37,639,805 (39,851,950) 87,611,978
Capital assets being depreciated:
Infrastructure 57,865,432 1,071,836 (4,863,790) 54,073,478
Buildings 371,504,426 58,267,475 (6,994) 429,764,907
Machinery and equipment 83,444,739 9,472,275 (9,998,820) 82,918,194
Library books and publications 60,234,020 3,691,948 — 63,925,968
Vehicles 13,077,332 821,311 (904,845) 12,993,798
Total capital assets being
depreciated 586,125,949 73,324,845 (15,774,449) 643,676,345
Less accumulated depreciation:
Infrastructure 23,181,918 2,079,261 (3,953,790) 21,307,389
Buildings 180,473,856 9,034,447 (5,595) 189,502,708
Machinery and equipment 57,293,555 6,717,715 (9,713,876) 54,297,394
Library books and publications 42,903,749 3,250,757 — 46,154,506
Vehicles 7,984,687 897,504 (781,017) 8,101,174
Total accumulated depreciation 311,837,765 21,979,684 (14,454,278) 319,363,171
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 274,288,184 51,345,161 (1,320,171) 324,313,174
Capital assets, net $ 364,112,307 88,984,966 (41,172,121) 411,925,152

27

(Continued)



©

OHIO UNIVERSITY
(a component unit of the State of Ohio)

Notes to Financial Statements

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Land improvements
Construction in progress
Collections of works of arts and
historical treasures

Total capital assets not being
depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Infrastructure
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Library books and publications
Vehicles

Total capital assets being
depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation:
Infrastructure
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Library books and publications
Vehicles

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Capital assets, net

June 30, 2002 and 2001
Retirements/
transfers from

Balance construction in Balance
July 1, 2000 Additions progress June 30, 2001
$ 10,656,462 3,291,722 — 13,948,184
3,026,340 — — 3,026,340
30,229,399 45,084,279 (8,589,836) 66,723,842
6,125,757 — — 6,125,757
50,037,958 48,376,001 (8,589,836) 89,824,123
52,097,332 6,013,507 (245,407) 57,865,432
353,451,620 19,866,079 (1,813,273) 371,504,426
75,954,223 9,276,803 (1,786,287) 83,444,739
56,251,616 3,982,404 — 60,234,020
12,486,257 651,289 (60,214) 13,077,332
550,241,048 39,790,082 (3,905,181) 586,125,949
21,416,850 2,010,475 (245,407) 23,181,918
173,109,624 8,107,365 (743,133) 180,473,856
52,288,577 6,645,190 (1,640,212) 57,293,555
39,738,459 3,165,290 — 42,903,749
7,076,470 963,700 (55,483) 7,984,687
293,629,980 20,892,020 (2,684,235) 311,837,765
256,611,068 18,898,062 (1,220,946) 274,288,184
$ 306,649,026 67,274,063 (9,810,782) 364,112,307

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities as of June 30, 2002 and June 30, 2001, consisted of the following:

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities

Total

2002 2001
$ 18,642,522 18,609,934
27,358,507 26,643,503
$ 46,001,029 45,253,437
28
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Bonds and Notes Payable
Bonds and notes payable at June 30, 2002 and 2001, are summarized as follows:
July 1, 2001 Borrowed Retired June 30, 2002 Current
General receipts bond anticipation notes $ 8,650,000 8,550,000 8,650,000 8,550,000 8,550,000
Subordinated variable general receipt bonds,
series 2001 48,025,000 — 1,715,000 46,310,000 4,522,600
General receipts bonds, series 1999 31,775,000 — 775,000 31,000,000 800,000
General receipts bonds, series 1993 42,395,000 — 2,375,000 40,020,000 2,475,000
Total bonds and notes payable $ 130,845,000 8,550,000 13,515,000 125,880,000 16,347,600
July 1, 2000 Borrowed Retired June 30, 2001 Current
General receipts bond anticipation notes $ 6,800,000 8,650,000 6,800,000 8,650,000 8,650,000
Subordinated variable general receipt bonds,
series 2001 — 48,025,000 — 48,025,000 1,715,000
General receipts bonds, series 1999 32,520,000 — 745,000 31,775,000 775,000
General receipts bonds, series 1993 44,665,000 — 2,270,000 42,395,000 2,375,000
Total bonds and notes payable $ 83,985,000 56,675,000 9,815,000 130,845,000 13,515,000

During the year ended June 30, 2002, the University issued a series of General Receipts Bond Anticipation
Notes totaling $8,550,000, the proceeds of which are being used to finance the replacement of the
following major administrative systems: human resources, payroll, financial and the purchase of an
imaging system. This issuance represents notes outstanding of $8,550,000 at June 30, 2002, of which
$4,950,000 mature on January 24, 2003 and $3,600,000 mature on March 27, 2003. The notes bear interest
rates of 2.11% and 2.50%, respectively.

On May 3, 2001, the University issued $48,025,000 in Subordinated Variable Rate General Receipts
Bonds, Series 2001 the (Series 2001 Bonds). The proceeds were for capital equipment, and construction
costs on various building projects.

On October 3, 2001, the University entered into a swap agreement with Morgan Guaranty Trust Company
of New York to hedge a portion of the University’s Series 2001 Bonds. The swap agreement converts the
Series 2001 Bonds’ variable interest rate to a fixed rate of 4.039%, settled on the first day of each month.
The total amount paid related to the swap agreement for the year ended June 30, 2002, is $485,357, and is
included as an adjustment to interest on capital asset-related debt in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Net Assets.

On March 15, 1999, the University issued $32,520,000 in General Receipts Bonds, Series 1999, with
which to pay construction costs on various building projects.

On January 13, 1994, the University issued $55,450,000 in General Receipts Bonds, Series 1993 which
were issued for advance refunds of the Series 1972, Series 1977 and Series 1978 General Receipts Bonds.
The remaining proceeds from this issue were used for the payment of construction costs on the student
recreation center.
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The 1999 and 1993 issues (Superior Obligations) are bound by the provisions of the 1972 Trust Agreement
(Prior Indenture) and its supplements as described below. The 1972 Trust Agreement and its supplement
relates to the provisions of the General Receipts Bonds. These bonds are pledged on a gross pledge and
first lien basis of the “General Receipts” of the University. The receipts include the full amount of every
type and character of campus receipts, except for State appropriations and receipts previously pledged or
otherwise restricted. The University has complied with all covenants of the Trust Agreement and its
supplements.

The First Supplemental Trust Agreement binds the 2001 bond issue. While Superior Obligation bonds
issued are outstanding, the pledge and lien on the General Receipts authorized and granted on the 2001
issue shall be subordinate to the pledge and lien on the General Receipts that secure the Superior
Obligations. The variable rate of interest in effect at June 30, 2002 was 1.25%. The average variable rate of
interest for the year ending June 30, 2002 was 1.73%.

Details of the series are as follows:

Maturity Initial issue Outstanding
Series Interest Rate fiscal year amount at June 30, 2002
1993 4.25% - 5.00% 2003-2019 $ 55,450,000 40,020,000
1999 3.60% - 5.25% 2003-2025 32,520,000 31,000,000
2001 Variable 2003-2027 48,025,000 46,310,000
$ 117,330,000

Principal and interest payment requirements for the bonded debt for the years subsequent to June 30, 2002
are summarized as follows:

Year ended
June 30 Principal Interest Total

2003 7,797,600 5,081,743 12,879,343
2004 7,787,600 4,775,615 12,563,215
2005 7,661,600 4,466,907 12,128,507
2006 6,281,600 4,178,796 10,460,396
2007 6,896,600 3,895,399 10,791,999
2008-2012 32,460,000 15,052,081 47,512,081
2013-2017 25,450,000 8,571,652 34,021,652
2018-2022 14,135,000 3,587,852 17,722,852
2023-2027 8,860,000 738,962 9,598,962
117,330,000 50,349,007 167,679,007

Bonds payable does not include $80,000 of outstanding Ohio University Housing and Dining Revenue
Bonds, Series G that were fully defeased on December 3, 1974. U. S. Treasury obligations are on deposit
with Bank One of Columbus, Columbus, Ohio. The amount at maturity will be sufficient to pay the
principal and interest on the defeased obligations.
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(8) Leases

The University has $793,656 in capital lease obligations that have varying maturity dates through 2005 and
carry implicit interest rates ranging from 4.72 % to 9.39 %. Lease arrangements are being used to provide
partial financing for certain machinery and equipment.

Capital leases as of June 30, 2002 and 2001 are summarized as follows:

Beginning Ending Current
Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion
For the year ended:
June 30, 2002 $ 1,204,339 452,198 (862,881) 793,656 594,757
June 30, 2001 118,403 1,566,491 (480,555) 1,204,339 579,400

The scheduled maturities of these leases as of June 30, 2002 are:

Minimum
lease

payments
2003 $ 632,320
2004 179,778
2005 27,888
Total minimum lease payments 839,986
Less amount representing interest 46,330
Net minimum capital lease payments 793,656
Less current portion 594,757
Noncurrent capital lease obligations $ 198,899

MCI Leases

MCI leases certain clinical facilities and equipment under operating and capital lease agreements. Facility
leases are primarily month-to-month leases except for two leases that expired in May 2002 and June 2002
and had monthly lease payments of $3,263 and $2,500 respectively. The equipment lease was a capital
lease that expired in April 2002. Lease payments for this lease were based on the number of patient
studies performed each month. MCI paid $50 per patient study plus taxes and if applicable, service fees
and other charges. The minimum number of patient studies was 35 per month. Total lease expense was
$181,002 and $164,986 for the years ended January 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The following
annual minimum payments are listed in the aggregate and have initial terms of one year or more at
January 31, 2002:
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Capital Operating
lease lease
2003 $ 3,500 $ 25,500
Total minimum lease payments 3,500 $ 25,500
Less amount representing interest (33)
Present value of minimum lease payments 3,467
Less current portion of capital lease obligation (3,467)

Non-current portion of capital lease obligation $ —

Compensated Absences

Per University policy, salaried faculty and staff earn vacation at the rate of 22 days per year with a
maximum accrual of 32 days. Upon termination they are entitled to a payout of their accumulated balance.
Hourly classified employees earn vacation at rates per years of service, ranging from 10 to 25 days per
year. The maximum accrual is equal to the amount earned in three years, which is subject to payout upon
termination. The liability for accrued vacation at June 30, 2002 and 2001 amounted to approximately
$8,697,000 and $8,253,000, respectively.

All University employees are entitled to a sick leave credit equal to 15 days per year (earned on a pro-rata
monthly basis for salaried employees and on a pro-rata hourly basis for classified hourly employees).
Salaried employees with 10 or more years of service are eligible to receive a payout upon retirement of up
to 25% of unused days (maximum of 30 days). Hourly classified employees with 10 or more years of
service are eligible for payout upon retirement of up to 50% of unused days (maximum of 60 days). The
liability for accrued sick leave at June 30, 2002 and 2001 amounted to approximately $4,438,000 and
$4,448,000, respectively.

A summary of compensated absences as of June 30, 2002 and 2001 follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Reductions Balance
For the year ended:
June 30, 2002 $ 12,700,879 650,211 (216,084) 13,135,006
June 30, 2001 $ 11,755,290 1,007,132 (61,543) 12,700,879

Retirement Plans

All University employees are eligible to participate in contributory retirement plans that are administered
by the Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio (PERS) and the State Teachers Retirement System of
Ohio (STRS). Both PERS and STRS are cost sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans.
The payroll for employees covered by PERS and STRS for the year ended June 30, 2002 was $91,531,000
and $73,060,000, respectively. The payroll for employees covered by PERS and STRS for the year ended
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June 30, 2001 was $91,015,000 and $72,158,000, respectively. For the years ended June 30, 2002 and
2001, the University's total payroll was $228,106,000 and $218,161,000, respectively.

PERS and STRS provide retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death
benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Authority to establish and amend benefits is provided by state
statute per Chapter 145 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Both PERS and STRS issue a stand-alone financial report. Interested parties may obtain a copy of the
PERS report by making a written request to 277 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-4642 and the
STRS report by making a written request to 275 East Broad Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3771.

The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for employee and employer contributions. The 2002
employee contribution rates were 8.5% for PERS, 10.1% for law enforcement employees and 9.3% for
STRS. The 2002 employer contribution rates for state employers were 13.31% of covered payroll for
PERS, 16.7% of covered payroll for law enforcement, and 14.0% of covered payroll for STRS,

The University’s contributions each year are equal to its required contributions.
University contributions for the current and two preceding years are summarized as follows:

Employer contribution

STRS PERS
2002 $ 10,228,000 12,183,000
2001 10,102,000 12,114,000
2000 9,996,000 11,314,000

Ohio Amended Substitute House Bill 586 (Ohio Revised Code 3305.02) became effective March 31, 1998.
The Bill authorized an alternative retirement system for academic and administrative university employees
of public institutions of higher education. These employees are currently covered by the State Teachers
Retirement System or the Public Employees Retirement System. The Ohio University Board of Trustees
adopted such a plan effective April 18, 1998. This plan is a defined contribution plan under IRS Section
401(a).

Eligible employees (those who are full-time and salaried) have 120 days from their date of hire to make an
irrevocable election to participate in the alternative retitement plan. Under this plan, employees who would
have otherwise been required to be in STRS or PERS and who elect to participate in the alternative
retirement plan must contribute the employee’s share of retirement contributions (9.3% STRS or 8.5%
PERS) to one of eight private providers approved by the State Department of Insurance. The legislation
mandates that the employer must contribute an amount to the state retirement system to which the
employee would have otherwise belonged, based on an independent actuarial study commissioned by the
Ohio Retirement Study Council and submitted to the Ohio Board of Regents. That amount was 0% for
PERS and 3.5% for STRS for the year ended June 30, 2002. The employer also contributes what would
have been the employer’s share of the appropriate retirement system, less the aforementioned percentages
to the private provider selected by the employee. The University plan provides these employees with
immediate plan vesting. The payroll for employees covered by the alternative retirement system for the
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years ended June 30, 2002 and June 30, 2001 was $35,847,000 and $33,307,000, respectively. The number
of employees participating in the alternative retirement system for the years ended June 30, 2002 and June
30, 2001 was 832 and 723, respectively.

MCI Deferred Profit Sharing Plan

Effective February 1, 1984, MCI established a deferred profit-sharing plan under Section 401(k) of the
Internal Revenue Code covering substantially all employees. Eligibility requirements are one year of
service defined as a 12-month period with more than 1,000 hours of service and a minimum age of 21
years. MCI’s annual contribution is 50% of each eligible employee’s elected contribution up to 3% of the
employee’s total salary. Total profit-sharing contribution was $119,948 and $121,766, respectively, for the
fiscal year ended January 31, 2002 and 2001.

Other Post-Employment Benefits

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 10, Ohio Law provides that the University fund
postretirement health care benefits through employer contributions to the Public Employees Retirement
System of Ohio (PERS) and the State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio (STRS).

PERS provides postretirement health care coverage to age and service retirees with 10 or more years of
qualifying Ohio service credit. Health care coverage for disability recipients and primary survivor
recipients is available. The health care coverage provided by the retirement system is considered an Other
Post-employment Benefit (OPEB) as described in GASB Statement No. 12. A portion of each employer’s
contribution to PERS is set aside for funding of postretirement health care. The Ohio Revised Code
provides statutory authority for employer contributions. The PERS law enforcement program was
separated into two divisions, law enforcement and public safety, with separate employee contribution rates
and benefits. The 2001 employer contribution rate for state employers was 13.31% of covered payroll;
4.30% was the portion used to fund health care for the year. The 2001 employer rate was 16.70% and
4.30% was the portion used to fund health care for both the law enforcement and public safety divisions.

The Ohio Revised Code provides the statutory authority requiring public employers to fund postretirement
health care through their contributions to PERS.

Contributions made by the University to fund post employment benefits under PERS for the 2002 and
2001 fiscal years were $3,936,000 and $3,914,000, respectively. The retirement board initiated significant
policy changes during 2000. They enacted a temporary employer contribution rate rollback for calendar
year 2000. The decision to rollback rates was based on the December 31, 1998 actuarial study that
indicated that actuarial assets exceeded actuarial liabilities. The temporary rate rollback was 20% for both
the state and local government divisions and 6% for law enforcement divisions. The board reallocated
employer contributions from 4.20% to 4.30% at the beginning of the year to improve health care financing,.
The proportion of contributions dedicated to funding OPEB increased during the year for those reasons.
They have also elected to return to an actuarially pre-funded type of disclosure.

The State Teachers Retirement System (STRS) of Ohio provides access to health care benefits for retirees
and their dependents. Coverage under the current program includes hospitalization, physicians’ fees,
prescription drugs and partial reimbursement of monthly Medicare Part B premiums. All benefit recipients
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and sponsored dependents are eligible for health care coverage. Pursuant to the Ohio Revised Code (ORC),
the State Teachers Retirement Board (the board) has discretionary authority over how much, if any, of the
health care costs will be absorbed by STRS. Most benefit recipients pay a portion of the health care cost in
the form of a monthly premium.

The ORC grants authority to STRS to provide health care coverage to benefit recipients, spouses and
dependents. By Ohio law the cost of the coverage paid from STRS funds shall be included in the employer
contribution rate, currently 14% of covered payroll.

The Retirement Board allocates employer contributions to the Health Care Reserve Fund from which
health care benefits are paid. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001, the Board allocated employer
contributions equal to 4.5% of covered payroll to the Health Care Reserve Fund. The balance in the Health
Care Reserve Fund was approximately $3.3 billion at June 30, 2001, the date of the most recent
information available from STRS. The Health Care Reserve Fund allocation for the year ended June 30,
2002 and after will be 4.5% of covered payroll.

Contributions by the University to fund post employment benefits under STRS for the 2002 and 2001
fiscal years were $3,288,000 and $3,247,000, respectively.

For the year ended June 30, 2001, the date of the most recent information available from STRS, net health
care costs paid by STRS were $300,772,000. There were 102,132 eligible benefit recipients.

Related Organization (unaudited)

The Ohio University Foundation is an independent corporation formed for the purpose of receiving funds
to benefit the University. As of June 30, 2002 and 2001, investments of the Foundation totaled
$147,182,732 and $172,470,917, respectively. Most of the Foundation’s investments have been restricted
by donors for a specific purpose. These investments are not recorded in the accompanying financial
statements of the University. Expenditures in support of education programs to the University were
$13,291,639 and $12,515,020, as of June 30, 2002 and 2001.

(13) Risk Management

During the normal course of operations, the University has become a defendant in various legal and
administrative actions. In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 5, Accounting
Jfor Contingencies, liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of
that loss can be reasonably estimated. However, in the opinion of legal counsel and University
management, the disposition of all pending litigation would not have a material adverse effect on the
financial condition of the University.

The University provides medical and dental coverage for its employees on a self-insurance basis. Expenses
for claims are recorded on an accrual basis based on the date claims are incurred. The University applies
GASB Statement No. 10, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Risk Financing and Related Insurance
Issues.
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A summary of changes in self-insurance claims liability for each of the periods in the three year period
ending June 30, 2002 as follows:

2002 2001 2000
Claims liability at beginning of year $ 6,150,000 5,159,000 3,909,000
Incurred claims, net of favorable settlements 20,450,000 24,700,000 21,709,000
Claims paid (22,389,000) (23,709,000) (20,459,000)
Claims liability at end of year $ 4,211,000 6,150,000 5,159,000

Claims are accrued based upon estimates of the claims liabilities made by the University’s third party
actuary. These estimates are based on past experience and current claims outstanding. Actual claims
experience may differ from the estimate. In addition, the University has the following commercial
insurance policies.

Type Deductible Coverage
Property $ 100,000 1,165,000,000
Crime 25,000 2,500,000
General liability 250,000 1,000,000
Educators legal liability 100,000 5,000,000
Excess liability — 95,000,000
Automobile — 1,000,000
Aircraft and airport liability 5,000,000 to 50,000,000

Medical malpractice 250,000 5,000,000 each physician

The University participates in a plan that pays workers’ compensation benefits to beneficiaries who have been
injured on the job. The Ohio Bureau of Workers’ Compensation calculates the estimated amount of cash needed
in the subsequent fiscal year to pay the claims for these workers and sets rates to collect this estimated amount
from these participating state agencies and universities in that subsequent one-year period. As these already-
injured workers’ claims will be paid out over a period of time, the Bureau also actuarially calculates estimated
amounts that will be paid in future periods. The University’s pro-rata share of this estimated liability for such
future payments has been calculated by the State of Ohio Office of Budget and Management on the basis of the
University’s share of actual cash payments paid to the Bureau in the preceding fiscal year divided by such
payments made by all participating entities. In previous years, this liability was recorded in the State’s General
Long-Term Obligations Account Group. As a result of implementing GASB 34 in fiscal year 2002, the
University accrued its share of the liability.

The cumulative pro-rata share of the University’s liability of $6,945,364 is reported as an adjustment to
beginning net assets as of July 1, 2000. For the years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001, the University recognized
expense in the amount of $3,119,590 and ($3,015,357), respectively, in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses,
and Changes in Net Assets.

MCI

The healthcare industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of Federal, State and Local
governments. These laws and regulations include, but are not necessarily limited to matters such as
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licensure, accreditation, government healthcare program participation requirements, reimbursement for
patient services and Medicare and Medicaid fraud and abuse.

Recently government activity has increased with respect to investigation and allegations concerning
possible violations of fraud and abuse statutes and regulations by healthcare providers. Specifically, the
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services’ PATH Initiative (Physicians At Teaching Hospitals) has
undertaken a project to audit Medicare billings by teaching physicians. Currently, MCI has not been
notified it will be subject to such an audit.

The Board of Directors of MCI has adopted a policy regarding compliance and integrity. Management
believes that MCI is in compliance with laws and regulations related to fraud and abuse as well as other
applicable government laws and regulations. Violations of these laws and regulations could result in
expulsion from government healthcare programs together with the imposition of significant fines and
penalties as well as significant repayments for patient services previously billed. Compliance with such
laws and regulations can be subject to future government review and interpretation as well as regulatory
actions unknown or unasserted at this time. Management believes that the results of any regulatory actions,
if any, will not be material to MCI’s financial position.

All of the physicians employed by MCI are under contractual arrangements that include three basic types:
1) fixed annual salary 2) fixed rate per shift and 3) fixed rate per hour.

There are several lawsuits, pending claims and incidents that occurred in the past whereby claims have
been made and may be asserted against MCI for which the ultimate liability, if any, has not been
determined. MCI carries malpractice insurance on a claims made basis with annual coverage limits of
$5,000,000 per occurrence and $5,000,000 in the aggregate per physician.

Management believes that the future costs relating to all pending malpractice claims and incidents are
within the scope of MCI’s insurance coverage and subject to reimbursement by the insurance carrier to the
extent costs are within the coverage limitations. However management cannot currently predict the amount
of future costs, if any, that may be outside the coverage limitations. Any such unreimbursed costs would be
borne by MCI and recorded in the accompanying financial statements when paid.

Grants and Contracts

The University receives grants and contracts from certain Federal, State, Local and nongovernmental
agencies to fund research and other activities. Any direct or indirect costs that have been charged to the
grant or contract are subject to examination and approval by the granting agency.

It is the opinion of the University administration that any disallowance or adjustment of such costs would
not have a material effect on the accompanying financial statements.

37 (Continued)



s)

(16)

OHIO UNIVERSITY
(a component unit of the State of Ohio)

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2002 and 2001

Commitments

At June 30, 2002 the University is committed to future capital expenditures as follows:

Contractual commitments:

To be paid by Ohio University $ 19,424,134
To be paid by the State of Ohio 12,596,382
Estimated costs of projects not yet committed 36,260,212

$ 68,280,728

These projects will be funded by:

State appropriations $ 25,950,724
Local operating funds 30,042,488
Gifts, federal grants, etc. 12,287,516

$ 68,280,728

The University is a state-assisted institution of higher education that receives several sources of funding
from the State of Ohio. The largest source of these funds is the “State Share of Instruction” that is
determined by the University’s enrollment as well as the level and discipline of the students’ courses. The
State of Ohio also provides funding based on the University’s performance (e.g. graduation rates for “at-
risk” students and the number of students that graduate in four years). In addition the State provides
funding that is restricted for specific activities.

In addition to the student subsidies, the State of Ohio provides funding for construction of major academic
plant facilities except for Auxiliary Enterprises. The funding is obtained from the issuance of revenue
bonds by the Ohio Public Facilities Commission (OPFC).

University facilities are not pledged as collateral for the revenue bonds. Instead, the bonds are supported by
a pledge of monies in the Higher Education Bond Service Fund established in the custody of the Treasurer
of State. If sufficient monies are not available from this fund, a pledge exists to assess a special student fee
uniformly applicable to students in state-assisted institutions of higher education throughout the State. As a
result of the above-described financial assistance provided by the State of Ohio to the University,
outstanding debt issued by OPFC is not included on the University's balance sheet. In addition, the
appropriations by the General Assembly to the Board of Regents for payment of debt service are not
reflected as appropriation revenue received by the University and the related debt service payments are not
recorded in the University's accounts.

Contingencies

The University is presently involved as defendant in various matters of litigation. In the opinion of
management and in-house counsel, the effects, if any, of such litigation is not expected to be material to the
University's financial position.
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Refundable Advances for Federal Student Loans

Refundable advances for federal student loans are summarized as follows for the years ended June 30,
2002 and 2001, respectively:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Reductions Balance
For the year ended:
June 30, 2002 $ 6,015,522 691,480 — 6,707,002
June 30, 2001 5,837,096 178,426 — 6,015,522

Donor Restricted Endowments

Under the standard established by Section 1715.56 of the Ohio Revised Code, an institution may
appropriate so much as is prudent of the realized and unrealized net appreciation of the fair value of the
assets of the endowment fund over the historic dollar value of the fund for the uses and purposes for
which an endowment fund is established

The University’s endowment spending policy is based on the concept of total return and the spending
rates range from 6% to 9%. For any particular year, the spending rate shall be 6%, except if the total
return rate as of the date the spending rate is determined exceeds 6% plus an inflation adjuster. In that
event the Board of Trustees may, but shall not be required to increase the spending rate up to the
amount at which the excess is greater than 6%, but not to exceed 9%.

The amounts of net appreciation on investments of donor-restricted endowments that were available for
authorization for expenditure by the Board, are $13,975,000 and $18,889,000 for June 30, 2002 and
2001, respectively. Those amounts are reported among the restricted expendable net asset categories,
depending on the purposes for which the endowment funds are established.

Internal Designation of Funds

The Statements of Net Assets show an amount of $45,776,104 and $54,532,243 for Unrestricted Net
Assets as of June 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Internally those funds have been designated as
follows:

2002 2001

Quasi endowments $ 10,493,244 13,233,507
Open purchase orders 2,455,457 2,317,147
Auxiliary enterprises 4,280,454 3,317,437
Departmental/auxiliary set-aside for current capital needs 8,214,519 11,709,270
Departmental/auxiliary set-aside for future capital needs 5,412,234 4,196,079
Departmental carryforward 14,920,196 19,758,803

$ 45776,104 54,532,243
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance and on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance With
Government Auditing Standards

The President and The Board of Trustees of
Ohio University

and

The Honorable James M. Petro
Auditor of State of Ohio:

We have audited the financial statements of Ohio University (the University), a component unit of the
State of Ohio, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2002, and have issued our report thereon dated October
11, 2002. As described in note 1 to the financial statements, as of July 1, 2000, the University adopted the
provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic Financial
Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments, GASB
Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for Public
Colleges and Universities — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 34, GASB Statement No. 37, Basic
Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments:
Omnibus — an amendment of GASB Statements No. 21 and No. 34, and GASB Statement No. 38, Certain
Financial Statement Note Disclosures. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the University’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.



Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the University’s internal control over financial
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our
consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in
the internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses.

A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control
components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be
material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely
period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters
involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material
weaknesses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Trustees and management of the
University, the Auditor of State of Ohio, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

KPme LEP

October 11, 2002



Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance With Requirements Applicable to
Each Major Program and Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance
With OMB Circular A-133, and Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

The President and The Board of Trustees of
Ohio University

and

The Honorable James M. Petro
Auditor of State:

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Ohio University (the University), a component unit of the State of
Ohio, with the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget
(OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to its major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 2002, except those requirements discussed in the third following paragraph. The
University’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants applicable to its major federal programs is the responsibility of the
University’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the University’s compliance based
on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on
a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the
University’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our
audit does not provide a legal determination on the University’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the University complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above
that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2002, other than those
requirements discussed in the following paragraph.



We did not audit the University’s compliance with requirements governing the student loan repayment
functions of the Federal Perkins Loan Program. Those requirements govern functions that are performed
by EFG Technologies, Inc. Since we did not apply auditing procedures to satisfy ourselves as to
compliance with those requirements, the scope of our work was not sufficient to enable us to express, and
we do not express, an opinion on compliance with those requirements.

EFG Technologies, Inc.’s compliance with the requirements governing the functions that it performs for
the University was examined by other accountants whose report has been furnished to us. The report of the
other accountants indicates that compliance with those requirements was examined in accordance with the
Department of Education’s Audit Guide, Compliance Audits (Attestation Engagements) of Federal Student
Financial Assistance Programs at Participating Institutions and Institutions Servicers. Based on our
review of the service organization accountants’ report, we have determined that all of the compliance
requirements included in the Compliance Supplement that are applicable to the major program in which the
University participates are addressed in either our report or the report of the service organization
accountants. Further, based on our review of the service organization accountants’ report, we have
determined that it does not contain any findings of noncompliance that would have a direct and material
effect on the University’s major program.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the University is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the University’s internal control over
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to
test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

Requirements governing student loan repayments functions of the Federal Perkins Loan Program are
performed by EFG Technologies, Inc. Internal control over compliance relating to such functions was
reported on by other accountants in accordance with the Department of Education’s Audit Guide,
Compliance Audits (Attestation Engagements) of Federal Student Financial Assistance Programs at
Participating Institutions and Institutions Servicers. A copy of the service organization accountants’ report
has been furnished to us. However, the scope of our work did not extend to internal control maintained at
EFG Technologies, Inc.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in internal
control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or
operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the
risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants that would
be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a
timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no
matters involving internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material
weaknesses.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We have audited the financial statements of the University as of and for the years ended June 30, 2002 and
have issued our report thereon dated October 11, 2002, As described in note 1 to the financial statements,
as of July 1, 2000, the University adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for
State and Local Governments, GASB Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis — for Public Colleges and Universities — an amendment of GASB Statement No.
34, GASB Statement No. 37, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis —
for State and Local Governments: Omnibus — an amendment of GASB Statements No. 21 and No. 34, and

4



GASB Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures. Our audit was performed for the
purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying Schedule
of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB
Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Trustees and management of the
University, the Auditor of State of Ohio, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities, and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

KP e LEP

October 11, 2002
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OHIO UNIVERSITY
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
June 30, 2002

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Schedule) is presented using the cash
basis of accounting in which expenditures are recognized when paid.

Subrecipients

Of the federal expenditures presented in the Schedule, the University provided federal awards to
subrecipients as follows:

CFDA Number Program Title Expended
11.300 Grants for Public Works and Economic Development
Facilities 37,000
12.420 Military Medical Research and Development 20,846
12.800 Air Force Office of Scientific Research — Air Force
Defense Research Sciences Program 54,444
15.808 U.S. Geological Survey — Research and Data Acquisition 258,609
20.108 Federal Aviation Administration: Aviation Research Grants 42,270
20.205 Ohio Department of Transportation — Highway Planning &
Construction 55,251
23.002 Appalachian Regional Development 39,060
23.011 Marietta College — Appalachian State Research, Technical
Assistance and Demonstration Projects 4,358
43. XXX Aerospace Eduction Services Program 302,069
43 XXX Distributed & Cooperative Problem Solving in the National
43. XXX Aviation System 15,000
43. XXX NASA Synthetic Vision 3,870
47.041 Engineering Grants 8,000
47.049 Mathematical and Physical Sciences 23,909
47.074 Biological Sciences 6,014
59.037 Small Business Development Center 123,468
66.600 Ohio EPA — Environmental Protection Consolidated
Grants — Program Support 86,104
66.606 Northeast Ohio Areawide Coordinated Agency — Surveys,
Studies, Investigations and Special Purpose Grants 2,612
81.XXX Novel Invest or Irn. Cross Sec. 252,137
81.XXX Ambient Fine Particle Matter 15,000
81.089 Fossil Energy Research and Development 95,460
84.015 National Resource Centers & Fellowships Program for
Language and Area or Language and International Studies 14,959
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OHIO UNIVERSITY
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
June 30, 2002

CFDA Number Program Title Expended
84.116J Fund for the Improvement of Post-Secondary Education 24,964
93.173 Research Related to Deafness and Communication
Disorders 159,009
93.279 Drug Abuse Research Programs 81,220
93.837 Heart and Vascular Diseases Research 190,116
93.853 Extramural Res. Program in the Neurosciences and
Neurological Disorders 85,420
93.854 National Institute of Neurological Disorders & Stroke 33,083
94.005 Governor's Community Service Commission — Learn and
Serve America — Higher Education 1,120
94.006 Americorps 3,300
2,038,672
Federal Loan Programs
Oustanding
balance at
CFDA Number June 30, 2002
Federal Perkins Looan Program 84.038 $ 8,462,172
Health Professional and Primary Care Loan Program 93.342 2,281,225
Total federal loan programs outstanding $ 10,743,397

25 (Continued)



OHIO UNIVERSITY
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
June 30, 2002

(1) Summary of Auditors’ Results

a.  The type of report issued on the financial statements: Unqualified opinion

b. Reportable conditions in internal control were disclosed by the audit of the financial statements:
None Reported

Material weaknesses: No

¢.  Noncompliance which is material to the financial statements: No

d. Reportable conditions in internal control over major programs: None Reported
Material weaknesses: No

e. The type of report issued on compliance for major programs: Unqualified opinion

f.  Any audit findings which are required to be reported under section .510(a) of OMB Circular
A-133: No

g.  Major programs: Student Financial Aid Cluster and Research and Development Cluster
h. Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $3,000,000
i.  Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under section .530 of OMB Circular A-133: Yes

(2) VFindings Relating to the Financial Statements Reported in Accordance With Government Auditing
Standards:

None

(3) Findings and Questioned Costs Relating to Federal Awards:

None
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Independent Accountants’ Report on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures

Dr. Robert Glidden, President
Ohio University:

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by Dr. Robert Glidden,
President, Ohio University, and the management of Ohio University (University) solely to assist the
University in evaluating compliance with the National Collegiate Athletic Association (NCAA) Bylaw
6.2.3.1, for the year ended June 30, 2002. University management is responsible for the University’s
compliance with those requirements. This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in
accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The sufficiency of the procedures is solely the responsibility of those parties specified in this
report. Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described
below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for any other purpose.

Procedures Related to Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

A. We obtained the accompanying Statement of Revenues and Expenditures (Statement) (Exhibit A), as
prepared by management. We recalculated the addition of the amounts on the Statement and
compared the amounts on each line on the Statement to the corresponding amounts in the
University's general ledger.

We found such amounts to be in agreement.

B. We compared the following actual amounts of revenues and expenditures per the Statement to the
corresponding budgeted amounts per the Ohio University annual budget: total revenues, total
football expenditures, total men’s basketball expenditures, total women’s basketball expenditures,
and total other sports and non-program specific expenditures.

No budget as compared to actual amount variances greater than $30,000 and 15% were identified.

C. We compared the total dollar amount of restricted gifts revenue per the Statement to the
corresponding total dollar amount in the general ledger of The Ohio University Foundation.

We found such amounts to be in agreement.

D. We obtained the Event Audit and Recap for Events reports prepared by the Intercollegiate Athletics
Department of Ohio University for all of the football, basketball, baseball and softball games for the
year ended June 30, 2002 from the University’s Athletics Department. We compared the total dollar
amount of ticket sales from the Event Audit and Recap for Events reports to the Statement via an
informal reconciliation with the assistance of the Athletics Department.

We found such amounts to be in agreement.



E. We obtained monthly departmental College and University Financial System (CUFS) budget and
actual reports from the Intercollegiate Athletics Department Business Manager for each month in
fiscal year 2002 and noted if the respective Ohio University Intercollegiate Athletics Department
manager’s signature was present on the reports to indicate management review of the reports on a
monthly basis.

We noted no management signature on the monthly departmental CUFS budget and actual reports.
According to the University Athletics Department Business Manager, the monthly departmental
CUFS budget and actual reports are reviewed monthly by the University Athletics Department
Business Manager, Associate Athletics Director for Business and Personnel, and the department
accountant.

F. We obtained the annual Ohio University Budget Summary 2001-02 (Summary) from the Athletics
Department Business Manager for the following Intercollegiate Athletics Departments:

Hall of Fame, Publications and Web, Athletic Training, Cheerleading, External Affairs, Academic
Services, Baseball, Men’s Basketball, Football, Men’s Golf, Swimming and Diving, Track and Cross
Country, Wrestling, Championships, Athletics Communications, Ticket Operations, Soccer, Field
Hockey, Women’s Golf, Women’s Basketball, Volleyball, Softball, Lacrosse, Strength and
Conditioning, Facility and Operations, Director of Athletics, Compliance, Equipment, Business and
Personnel.

We noted whether the Athletics Director and Associate Athletics Director signed each Summary
indicating approval of the budget for fiscal year 2002,

We found no exceptions to the Athletic Director and Associate Athletics Director’s signatures on
each of the Summaries.

G. We compared the total amount of guarantee receipts and expenditures as listed in the Ohio
University Guarantees for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2002 schedule obtained from the Athletics
Department Business Manager to the Ohio University budgeted guarantee receipts and expenditures
per the Ohio University budget. We obtained explanations from the Athletics Department Business
Manager of variances between actual guarantee receipts and expenditures and budgeted guarantee
receipts and expenditures.

Actual guarantees receipts exceeded budgeted guarantee receipts by $61,500, and actual guarantee
expenditures were less than budgeted guarantee expenditures by $13,000. The explanation obtained
from the Intercollegiate Athletics Department Business Manager was that the differences are due to
the fact that the Athletics Department can not accurately budget basketball guarantees, as the
amounts for basketball guarantees are not known at the time the budget is prepared.

H. We obtained The Ohio University Foundation—Intercollegiate Athletics—FYE 6/30/02 report (the
Report) from The Ohio University Foundation. The Report contained two contributions received
directly by the University which constituted more than 10% of all contributions received for the
Ohio University Intercollegiate Athletics Department per the Statement. For both contributions, we
compared the name of the donor, the dollar amount ($30,000 each) and date of the gift (both
December 31, 2001) to the original donor letter. We then added all contributions made on December
31, 2001, per the Report and compared the total of contributions made on December 31, 2001 to the
Ohio University validated deposit slip dated December 31, 2001.

We found such information to be in agreement.



I. We obtained the dollar amount of NCAA revenue sharing for the NCAA men’s basketball
tournament per the Statement and compared the amount to the corresponding sum of amounts per
copies of the Ohio University deposit form (#51743sd017) via an informal reconciliation with the
assistance of the Intercollegiate Athletics Department.

We found such amounts to be in agreement.
Procedures Related to Outside Organizations

J.  We obtained from the management of Ohio University the following list of outside organizations and
their related financial activities for the year ended June 30, 2002, as they relate to the intercollegiate
athletics programs of the University:

The Ohio

University Green and

Foundation White Club Totals
Beginning cash balance $ 929,718 515,198 1,444,916
Add: cash receipts 670,960 92,340 763,300
Other 64,980 (69,350) (4,370)

1,665,658 538,188 2,203,846

Less: contributions to or on behalf of program 974,270 21,183 995,453
Ending cash balance $ 691,388 517,005 1,208,393

These amounts are not recorded in the University’s general ledger.

K. We obtained a listing prepared by the University Intercollegiate Athletics Department of cash
receipts received directly from the Green and White Club (the booster group) by Ohio University
totaling $21,183, and numerous other cash receipts, totaling $106,399, from The Ohio University
Foundation (the Foundation). We compared cash receipts received directly from the Green and
White Club to the total of the following canceled checks maintained by the Foundation: check
#2973, 2974, 3007-3011, and 3029. We compared other cash receipts from the Foundation to The
Ohio University Foundation Intercollegiate Athletics FYE 6/30/02 report with the assistance of
Foundation management.

We found such amounts to be in agreement.
Procedures Related to Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

L. We obtained the computerized ticketing system Event Audit and Recap for Event reports prepared
by the Intercollegiate Athletics Department and recalculated the gross revenue for each category of
tickets sold on the Event Audit and Recap for Event reports. We compared the dollar amount of
individual game ticket sales for five haphazardly selected football games and ten haphazardly
selected men’s basketball games for the corresponding date per the Ohio University Athletic Ticket
Office Seller Sheet to the validated bank deposit slip via an informal reconciliation with the
University Director of Ticketing Operations. The games selected and the corresponding dates were:

Football:

Iowa State University (9/22/01)

University of Toledo (10/6/01)

Miami University (10/20/01)

Kent State University (10/27/01)

Bowling Green State University (11/10/01)



Men’s basketball:

Duquesne University(11/29/01)
Oakland University (12/15/01)
Western Michigan University (1/9/02)
Miami University (1/19/02)
University of Akron (1/30/02)
Marshall University (2/2/02)

Ball State University (2/9/02)

Central Michigan University (2/13/02)
Kent State University (2/23/02)
University of Toledo (2/27/02)

We found such amounts to be in agreement.

We were not engaged to, and did not, conduct an examination, the objective of which would be the
expression of an opinion on the accompanying Statement of Revenues and Expenditures of the
Intercollegiate Athletics Department of Ohio University. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have
been reported to you.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the President and management of Ohio
University and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

KP M LIP

October 11, 2002
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OHIO UNIVERSITY
TELECOMMUNICATIONS CENTER
A Public Telecommunications Entity
(A Department of Ohio University)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2002

This report is provided for your convenience and understanding of the Ohio University Telecommunications
Center’s (the Center) financial condition and operating activities for the year ended June 30, 2002. Management
has prepared the financial statements and the related footnote disclosures along with this discussion and analysis.
The overview presented below highlights the significant financial activities that occurred during the past year and
describes changes in financial activity from the prior year. As required by the newly adopted accounting
principles, the financial report consists of basic financial statements that provide information on the Center: the
Statement of Net Assets, the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets, and the Statement of
Cash Flows.

USING THIS REPORT

In June of 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) released Statement No. 34, Basic
Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments. This
Statement requires a comprehensive look at the entity as a whole. In November 1999, GASB issued Statement
No. 35, Basic Financial Statements-and Management’s Discussion and Analysis-for Public Colleges and
Universities, which applies those standards to that group. GASB has not yet developed accounting standards for
presentation of auxiliary (or departmental) entities. The Center is considered a special-purpose government
engaged only in business-type activities as defined by GASB Statements No. 34 and 35. The Center’s accounting
policies and practices do, however, conform to those permitted or allowed by the Corporation for Public
Broadcasting, which generally follow published Governmental Accounting Standards. The purpose of these
GASB Statements is to enhance the understandability and usefulness of the external financial reports for the
primary users of these reports. The financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001 have not been
restated and are not included for comparative purposes in the financial statements. Future years’ statements will
be comparative.



The financial statements of the Center include the following:

Three basic financial statements: the Statement of Net Assets, the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Assets, and the Statement of Cash Flows.

The Statement of Net Assets classifies assets and liabilities as current or noncurrent. Generally, current
liabilities are those that will be paid within one year of the date of the Statement. Current assets are those
that are available to satisfy current liabilities.

There are three classes of net assets: Unrestricted, Restricted (nonexpendable and expendable), and
Invested in Capital Assets.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets differentiates between operating and
nonoperating revenue. Charges for goods and services are recorded as operating revenues. In addition,
certain federal, state, local, and private grants are considered operating revenue if they are not for capital
purposes and are provided as a contract for services. Essentially all other types of revenue are
nonoperating, or other revenue. Nonoperating revenues are those that are primarily nonexchange in
nature. They consist of support from the University, grants, and contracts that do not require any services
to be performed for the benefit of the grantor, or grants and contracts that require services to be
performed for the benefit of the grantor of a lesser value than the grant dollars received.

Depreciation expense is included in operating expenses.

This annual financial report includes the report of the independent auditors, this management’s discussion and
analysis, the three basic financial statements referenced above, and notes to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS OF FY 2002

Statement of Net Assets

The Statement of Net Assets presents the financial position of the Center as of the end of the fiscal year. The
Center’s net assets decreased by $8,996,936 as a result of the cumulative effect of a change in accounting
principle brought about by the implementation of GASB 34/35. The beginning fund balance (net asset) was
reduced by the amount of $8,808,377 for accumulated depreciation. The decrease in net assets as a result of
current period operations was $128,526. Accounts receivable-related party represents amounts available in the
cash account of the University for the benefit of the Center. All of the Center’s receipts and disbursements are
recorded in this account.

The following depicts the breakdown of Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets:

Assets:

Accounts receivable - related party $ 2,421,582
Capital assets, net 6,113,797
Deposit on capital assets 137,806
8,673,185

Liabilities:
Current liabilities 213,764
Noncurrent liabilities 273,842
487,606
Net assets $ 8,185,579




The Net Assets are further displayed as follows:

Invested in capital assets $ 6,113,797
Restricted expendable 1,499,874
Unrestricted 571,908

Total $ 8,185,579

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets presents the Center’s results of operations for
the current fiscal year. The revenues and expenses are generally reported as either operating or nonoperating.

Operating Revenues

Operating revenues are generated, in part, by the sale of goods or services. Certain grants are also classified as
operating revenues if the Center is required by the grant to provide goods or services to the grantor of equal value
to the value of the services or dollars received. Total operating revenues are $346,169.

Nonoperating Revenues

Nonoperating revenues include an annual Community Service Grant from the Corporation for Public
Broadcasting and the State of Ohio, administered through an annual grant from the Ohio Educational
Telecommunications Network Commission. Nonoperating revenues also include an appropriation, donated
facilities, and administrative support from its licensee (Ohio University), membership revenue, and contributions
from area businesses (program underwriting). Certain grants are also classified as nonoperating revenue if the
Center is not required under the grant agreement to provide goods or services to the grantor of equal value to the
services or dollars received. In-kind contributions of $1,796,334 are also included in nonoperating revenues as
Private Gifts, Grants, and Contracts revenue. Total nonoperating revenues are $7,544,490.

Capital Grants and Gifts

This category includes $806,968 in monies received from the US Department of Commerce for the WOUB TV
transmitter replacement.

The following depicts total revenue by source:

Support from Ohio University $ 3,562,488
Grants and contracts 3,108,763
Sales and services 230,042
In-kind support 1,796,334

$ 8,697,627




Operating Expenses

Operating expenses have been incurred to vendors and employees for providing goods or services for the overall
operations of the Center.

The following depicts operating expenses by function:

Operating expenses by function:

Public service $ 8,009,002
Academic support 234,517
Student aid 250
Depreciation 582,384
Total operating expenses $ 8,826,153

Change in Net Assets

Total change in net assets is as follows:

Operating revenues $ 346,169
Nonoperating revenues 7,544,490
Capital grants and gifts 806,968
Operating expenses (8,826,153)

Decrease in net assets (128,526)
Beginning net assets 8,314,105
Ending net assets $ 8,185,579

CAPITAL ASSETS

Digital Conversion

The Station expects to begin digital signal broadcasting in the spring of 2003. The total capital costs associated
with conversion to digital capability are expected to be approximately $9.5 million for pass-through, master
control, and editing; $19.2 million for full High Definition/Multi-channel Television (HDTV), one channel
equipped. Adding additional Standard Definition Television (SDTV) channels will vary widely in cost,
depending upon the service provided. For example, if a pass-through satellite service is used on a selected
channel, the cost would be minimal, in the range of $10,000. If a distance learning channel(s) is added, the cost
would be dependent upon the type of service provided and whether additional classrooms are needed. The cost
could range from $50,000 to $300,000 per channel. Through June 30, 2002, the Center has expended $6.4
million toward digital television conversion.

Major capital expenditures during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002 include:
e Equipment $60,748

e Construction in progress:

WOUB transmitter replacement &
digital TV conversion $1,748,897



1600 PNC Center
201 East Fifth Street
Cincinnati, OH 45202

Independent Auditors’ Report

The President and the
Board of Trustees of
Ohio University
and
The Honorable Betty Montgomery,
Auditor of State of Ohio:

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements as listed in the accompanying table of
contents of the Ohio University Telecommunications Center (the Center), a public telecommunications
entity (a department of Ohio University), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2002. These financial
statements are the responsibility of Ohio University's (the University) management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in note 1, the financial statements of the Center are intended to present the financial position and
changes in financial position and cash flows of only that portion of the University that is attributable to the
transactions of the Center. They do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of Ohio
University as of June 30, 2002, and the changes in its financial position and its cash flows, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the Center as of June 30, 2002, and the respective changes in its financial
position and cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

As described in note 1 to the financial statements, as of July 1, 2001, the Center adopted the provisions of
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments, GASB Statement No. 35,
Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for Public Colleges and
Universities — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 34, GASB Statement No. 37, Basic Financial
Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments: Omnibus —
an amendment of GASB Statements No. 21 and No. 34, and GASB Statement No. 38, Certain Financial
Statement Note Disclosures.

. . . . KPMG LLP, KPMG LLP, a U.S. limited liability partnership, is

A member of KPMG International, a Swiss association 5
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In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 11,
2002 on our consideration of Ohio University’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Govermment Auditing Standards and should be read in
conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis is not a required part of the basic financial statements but is
supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

KPMc LLP

February 21, 2003



OHIO UNIVERSITY
TELECOMMUNICATIONS CENTER
A Public Telecommunications Entity
(A Department of Ohio University)

Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2002

Assets
Current assets:
Accounts receivable-related party $ 2,421,582
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets, net 6,113,797
Deposit on capital assets 137,806
Total noncurrent assets 6,251,603
Total assets $ 8,673,185

Liabilities & Net Assets
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 213,764
Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences 273,842
Total liabilities 487,606
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets 6,113,797
Restricted:
Expendable:
Public service 1,499,874
Unrestricted 571,908
Total net assets 8,185,579
Total liabilities and net assets $ 8,673,185

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



OHIO UNIVERSITY
TELECOMMUNICATIONS CENTER
A Public Telecommunications Entity
(A Department of Ohio University)

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets

For the year ended June 30, 2002

Operating revenues:
Federal grants and contracts
State grants and contracts
Sales and services

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Public service
Academic support
Student aid
Depreciation

Total operating expenses
Operating loss

Nonoperating revenues:
Support from Ohio University
Federal grants and contracts
Private gifts, grants and contracts

Net nonoperating revenues

Loss before other revenues

Capital grants and gifts

Decrease in net assets

Net assets:
Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

$ 25,000
91,127
230,042

346,169

8,009,002
234,517
250
582,384

8,826,153

(8,479,984)

3,562,488
20,310
3,961,692

7,544,490

(935,494)

806,968

(128,526)

8,314,105

$ 8,185,579




OHIO UNIVERSITY
TELECOMMUNICATIONS CENTER
A Public Telecommunications Entity
(A Department of Ohio University)

Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended June 30, 2002

Cash flows from operating activities:
Grants and contracts
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Payments for benefits
Payments for scholarships and fellowships
Sales and services

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Support from Ohio University
Gifts and grants for other than capital purposes

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Capital grants and gifts received
Purchases of capital assets

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities

Net change in cash
Cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash equivalents, end of year

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Operating loss

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation expense
In-kind expenses
Loss on disposal of capital assets

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Deposit on capital assets
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities

Net cash used in operating activities

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

116,127
(2,922,695)
(2,761,962)
(744,307)
(250)
230,042

(6,083,045)

3,562,488
2,185,669

5,748,157

806,968
(1,809,645)

(1,002,677)

(1,337,565)
3,759,147

2,421,582

(8,479,984)

582,384
1,796,334
4,930

(137,806)
141,091
10,006

(6,083,045)




OHIO UNIVERSITY
TELECOMMUNICATIONS CENTER
A Public Telecommunications Entity
(A Department of Ohio University)

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2002

(1) Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(@)

(b)

Organization

The Ohio University Telecommunications Center (the Center) is owned and operated by Ohio
University, Athens, Ohio (the University). The Center manages two non-commercial public
television stations, WOUB-TV in Athens, Ohio and WOUC-TV in Cambridge, Ohio. The signal of
WOUC-TV is repeated on transmitters in Millersburg and Loudonville, Ohio. The Center also
manages six non-commercial public radio stations, WOUB-AM and WOUB-FM in Athens, Ohio;
WOUC-FM in Cambridge, Ohio, WOUL-FM in Ironton, Ohio; WOUH-FM in Chillicothe, Ohio;
and WOUZ-FM in Zanesville, Ohio. Among other services, the Center manages a Media
Distribution Center for Ohio University, provides community outreach to 37 counties, programs
WOUBII, Channel 25 on the Time Warner Cable system in Athens, and provides teleconferencing
and engineering consulting services, along with audio and video production.

The Center is not a separate legal entity and operates as a department of Ohio University. The
accompanying separate financial statements of the Center are prepared solely to meet the reporting
requirements of the Corporation for Public Broadcasting, a major funding organization. These
financial statements are included within the financial statements of the University. These financial
statements include only the activities of the Center, and therefore they are not intended to present
fairly the financial position, change in financial position, and cash flows of the University in
conformity with accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America.

Financial Statement Presentation

Effective July 1, 2001, the Center adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 34, Basic
Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local
Governments, GASB Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion
and Analysis — for Public Colleges and Universities — an Amendment of GASB 34, and Statement
No. 37, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and
Local Governments: Omnibus. These Statements establish new financial reporting requirements and
significantly change the format and content of the Center’s financial statements. Effective July 1,
2001, the Center adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Statement
Note Disclosures. This Statement modifies, establishes, and rescinds certain financial statement note
disclosures. These Statements require new information and restructure much of the information that
the Center has presented in the past. The implementation of these statements was applied on a
retroactive basis as of July 1, 2001. Therefore, opening net assets reflect the impact of recording
$8,996,936 for GASB 34 and 35 implementation, primarily related to accumulated depreciation.

10 (Continued)
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OHIO UNIVERSITY
TELECOMMUNICATIONS CENTER
A Public Telecommunications Entity
(A Department of Ohio University)

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2002

Basis of Accounting

The University is a special-purpose government engaged only in business type activities.
Accordingly, as a department of the University, the Center’s financial statements are presented using
an economic resources measurement focus and are presented on the accrual basis of accounting.
Under the accrual basis, revenues are recognized when earned, and expenses are recorded as
incurred.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America may require management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect certain amounts reported in the financial statements. The estimates and assumptions are based
on currently available information and actual results could differ from those estimates.

Capital Assets

If purchased or constructed, capital assets are recorded at cost or estimated historical cost in the year
of purchase or construction. If donated, they are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of
gift. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the asset.

The following are capitalization levels and estimated useful lives of major asset classes:

Estimated
Asset class Capitalize at useful life
Buildings and building improvements Any amount 10-40 years
Equipment $2,500 or greater 5-25 years

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add value to the capital asset or materially
extend its life are not capitalized. Land and land improvements are not depreciated.

Compensated Absences

University employees earn vacation and sick leave benefits based, in part, on length of service. Upon
separation from service, employees are paid their accumulated vacation and sick pay based upon the
nature of separation (termination, retirement or death). Certain limitations are placed on the hours of
vacation and sick leave that employees may accumulate and carry over for payment at termination,
retirement or death. Unused hours exceeding their limitations are forfeited. The liability incurred is
recorded at year-end as a noncurrent liability in the Statement of Net Assets, and as a component of
operating expense in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets.

11 (Continued)
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OHIO UNIVERSITY
TELECOMMUNICATIONS CENTER
A Public Telecommunications Entity
(A Department of Ohio University)

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2002

Net Assets

The Center’s net assets are categorized as described below:
Invested in capital assets: This represents the Center’s investment in capital assets.

Restricted net assets — expendable: Restricted expendable net assets represent assets that are
restricted by a third party either legally or contractually.

Unrestricted net assets: Unrestricted net assets are resources derived primarily from operating funds
provided by the University, which are designated for use by the Center.

The Center has no restricted nonexpendable net assets as of June 30, 2002.

Income Taxes

The University is an organization described in Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986
(the Code) and has further been classified as an organization that is not a private foundation in
accordance with Sections 509(a)(1) and 170(b)(1)(A)(ii) of the Code. As such, the Center is exempt
from income taxes other than taxes on certain revenues, which are considered unrelated business
income.

Classification of Revenues

Revenues are classified as either operating or nonoperating according to the following:

Operating revenues: Operating revenues include revenues from activities that have characteristics
similar to exchange transactions. These include sales and services, and certain grants, which require
that the Center provide goods or services to the grantor of equal value to the grant dollars received.

Nonoperating revenues: Nonoperating revenues include revenues from activities that have
characteristics of nonexchange transactions such as support from the University and certain grants,
which do not require the Center to provide goods or services to the grantor of equal value to the grant
dollars received.

Support from Ohio University

The University provides indirect support to the Center through its administration and physical plant
support. Indirect support is recorded as revenue and expense as incurred in the accompanying
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets.

Administrative support is derived from the percentage of certain of the Center’s operating
expenditures ($5,237,103) over Ohio University’s total educational and general expenditures
excluding separately budgeted research, public service, scholarships and fellowships ($297,426,691),
or 1.75%. This percentage is applied against the University’s overall institutional support of
$16,199,558. Expenses are allocated to cost centers based on direct operating expenses.

12 (Continued)
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OHIO UNIVERSITY
TELECOMMUNICATIONS CENTER
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Physical plant support is determined by an assessment of the square footage assigned the Center and
the cost per square foot of providing types of physical plant support. Expenses are allocated to cost
centers according to estimated square footage.

In-kind Support

In-kind support is provided by the Ohio Department of Education, the Educational Technology
Services of Ohio, and the Ohio Educational Telecommunications Network Commission. These
values are based upon statements provided by the respective agency. Expenses are allocated to cost
centers based on the nature of the in-kind support provided. In-kind support is included in both
revenues and expenses in the accompanying Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net
Assets.

Related Parties

Contributions received by The Ohio University Foundation (the Foundation), which are restricted as
to use for the Center, are managed by the Foundation. The Center records cash received from the
Foundation as both revenue and expense when monies are received from the Foundation to pay
expenses. As of June 30, 2002, the Foundation has recorded pledges receivable and endowment and
scholarship funds in the amount of $54,861, which are restricted as to use for the Center.

The Center does not maintain a separate cash account; therefore, all of the Center’s receipts and
disbursements are reflected in the accounts of the University. The Center’s share of cash accounts is
reflected on the Statement of Net Assets as accounts receivable — related party. For purposes of the
Statement of Cash Flows, this account is considered a cash equivalent.

13 (Continued)
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Capital Assets

Capital assets reported by the Center are assets of the State of Ohio, with the University having custodial
responsibility. The building values have been prorated based upon the Center’s percentage usage of the net
assignable square footage applied to the actual cost plus improvements of the buildings. Equipment
represents items listed on the University’s general ledger as equipment for the Center as of June 30, 2002
with a unit value of at least $2,500 and an estimated useful life of five years or more.

The following table represents changes in the various capital asset categories during the year ended June
30, 2002:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2001 Additions Disposals June 30, 2002
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 69,235 — — 69,235
Construction in progress 235,867 1,748,897 — 1,984,764
Total capital assets not being depreciated 305,102 1,748,897 — 2,053,999
Capital assets being depreciated:
Infrastructure 3,468,741 — — 3,468,741
Buildings 3,078,780 — — 3,078,780
Equipment 6,847,220 60,748 (549,951) 6,358,017
Total capital assets being depreciated 13,394,741 60,748 (549,951) 12,905,538
Less accumulated depreciation:
Infrastructure 1,435,497 79,664 — 1,515,161
Buildings 2,247,861 87,133 — 2,334,994
Equipment 5,125,019 415,587 (545,021) 4,995,585
Total accumulated depreciation 8,808,377 582,384 (545,021) 8,845,740
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 4,586,364 (521,636) (4,930) 4,059,798
Capital assets, net $ 4,891,466 1,227,261 (4,930) 6,113,797

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities as of June 30, 2002 consist of the following:

Accounts payable $ 178,264
Accrued payroll 35,500
$ 213,764

14 (Continued)
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Accrued Compensated Absences

Per University policy, salaried faculty and staff earn vacation at the rate of 22 days per year with a
maximum accrual of 32 days. Upon termination they are entitled to a payout of their accumulated balances.
Hourly classified employees earn vacation at rates per years of service, ranging from 10 to 25 days per
year. The maximum accrual is equal to the amount earned in three years, which is subject to payout upon
termination. The liability for accrued vacation at June 30, 2002 amounted to $215,340.

All University employees are entitled to a sick leave credit equal to 15 days per year (earned on a pro-rata
monthly basis for salaried employees and on a pro-rata hourly basis for classified hourly employees).
Salaried employees with 10 or more years of service are eligible to receive a payout upon retirement of up
to 25% of unused days (maximum of 30 days). Hourly classified employees with 10 or more years of
service are eligible for payout upon retirement of up to 50% of unused days (maximum of 60 days). The
liability for accrued sick leave at June 30, 2002 amounted to $58,502.

A summary of accrued compensated absences is as follows:

Beginning Ending
balance Additions Reductions balance
For the year ended
June 30, 2002 $ 299,336 — 25,494 273,842
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1600 PNC Center
201 East Fifth Street
Cincinnati, OH 45202

Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance and on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance With
Government Auditing Standards

The Board of Trustees of
Ohio University
and
The Honorable Betty Montgomery,
Auditor of State of Ohio:

We have audited the financial statements of Ohio University (the University), a component unit of
the State of Ohio, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2002, and have issued our report thereon dated
October 11, 2002. As described in note 1 to the financial statements, as of July 1, 2000, the University
adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic
Financial Statements — Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments, GASB
Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements — Management’s Discussion and Analysis — For Public
Colleges and Universities — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 34, GASB Statement No. 37 Basic
Financial Statements — Management’s Discussion and Analysis — For State and Local Governments
Omnibus — an amendment of GASB Statements No. 21 and 34, and GASB Statement No. 38, Certain
Financial Statement Note Disclosures. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the University’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

KPMG LLP, KPMG LLP, a U.S. limited liability partnership, is 1 6
A member of KPMG International, a Swiss association
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Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the University’s internal control over financial
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our
consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in
the internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses.

A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control
components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be
material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely
period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters
involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material
weaknesses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Trustees and management of the
University, the Auditor of State of Ohio, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

KPMmc LLP

October 11, 2002
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STATE OF OHIO
OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR

JimM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE

OHIO UNIVERSITY

ATHENS COUNTY

CLERK'S CERTIFICATION

88 East Broad Street
P.0O. Box 1140
Columbus, Ohio 43216-1140

Telephone  614-466-4514
800-282-0370

Facsimile 614-466-4490

This is a true and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the Office
of the Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revised Code, and which is filed

in Columbus, Ohio.

desan Tubbtt

CLERK OF THE BUREAU

CERTIFIED
JANUARY 9, 2003
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